
Agenda ........................................................................................................................ 2

Special Town Meeting Warrant .................................................................................... 5

Previous Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2024 .................................................................... 8

Previous Meeting Minutes - April 26, 2024 ................................................................ 17

Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles for Public Hearing ........................................ 20

Article 26 - Proposed Public Works Garage .............................................................. 32

Discussion of Choice of Fiber Network Vendor ......................................................... 76

Personal Property Revalutaion - KRT ....................................................................... 79

Access to Trust Account Approval ........................................................................... 105

Supplemental Warrant to Annual Town Meeting Warrant ........................................ 106

Proposed Redline Changes to Fire Protection Ordinance ...................................... 107

Fire Chief Memo .......................................................................................................115

Proclamation for Veteran’s Ceremony ......................................................................116

RSU #14 Budget Warrant .........................................................................................117

Town of Raymond
Select Board ePacket

May 7, 2024
Table of Contents

(Click on item to go to that page)



Page 2 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Agenda

 
Select Board Meeting Agenda                     (Page 1 of 3)                      May 7, 2024 

 

PUBLIC HEARING & 
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING & 

SELECT BOARD 
Agenda 

 
May 7, 2024 

 
5:30pm – Public Hearing &  

Special Town Meeting & 
Regular Meeting 

 
At Broadcast Studio &  

Via Zoom & on YouTube 
Resolution:  We, the Raymond Select Board, recognize our individual and collective responsibilities as leaders and representatives of our 
community.  To this end, we pledge to conduct ourselves in a manner befitting these roles and duties.  We pledge and encourage others to 
“Be the Influence” and to recognize that decisions matter. 

 
 

Public Hearing 
 

1) Open Public Hearing 
a) Update to Tax Increment Financing District to Include Broadband 

 

 
Special Town Meeting 

 
2) Special Town Meeting Warrant – to add Broadband as an allowable expense to the TIF 

District Agreement (broadband was added as an allowable expense by the State after our 
TIF District Agreement was enacted). 

 

Select Board Meeting 
 

3) Call regular meeting to order 
 

4) Minutes of previous meetings 
a) April 8, 2024 – Regular Meeting 
b) April 26, 2024 – Emergency Meeting 

  
5) Public Hearings 

a) Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles Including Ordinance Change Articles 
 

6) New Business 
a) Discussion of Choice of Fiber Network Vendor – Sarah Davis questioned why her 

company was not chosen, COLAB committee wants to present their process for 
choosing Sebago Fiber 



Page 3www.raymondmaine.org

 
Select Board Meeting Agenda                     (Page 2 of 3)                      May 7, 2024 

b) Consideration of Awarding the Personal Property Revaluation to KRT – Curt Lebel, 
Assessing Agent 

c) Consideration of Authorizing Corporate Resolution for Access to Accounts at Portland 
Trust Co – Charisse Keach, Finance Director 

d) Consideration of Adding a Supplemental Warrant to the Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
for Changes to the Fire Protection Ordinance – Sprinkler Articles 
Public Safety crafted an update to the sprinkler ordinance for the March 12, 2024, 
Select Board meeting which included allowing 2-hour fire rated separation walls to 
delineate compartments to include in calculations for whether or not a building 
requires sprinklers and adding an appeal process.  However the meeting was cut short 
due to a storm, the item was not taken up, and therefore could not be sent to the 
Planning Board for consideration in time for the Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 

e) Consideration of Using Select Board Contingency for Public Safety Unforeseen 
Expenses – Bruce Tupper, Fire Chief 

f) Consideration of Proclamation for Veteran’s Ceremony – Sue Look, Town Manager 
g) Consideration of Approving Warrant Calling the RSU #14 Election on June 11, 2024 – 

Melanie Fernald, Town Clerk 
h) Consideration of Changing the Open Hours of the Town Office – Sue Look, Town 

Manager 
Suggesting changing the opening time from 8:30am to 8:00am and changing closing 
on Tuesday from 7:00pm to 6:00pm.  This is a net increase for citizens of 1 hour. 
 

7) Public Comment 
 

8) Selectman Comment 
 

9) Town Manager's Report and Communications 
 
a) Confirm Dates for Upcoming Regular Meetings 

● June 25, 2024 
● July 9, 2024 

 
b) Upcoming Election Schedule 

● May 15, 2024 – Budget Vote at Windham High School Auditorium – 6:30pm 
● May 24, 2024 – Deadline to change parties to vote in the Primary on June 11th 
● June 6, 2024 – Deadline to request absentee ballots 
● June 11, 2024 – State Primary, Municipal Officers, Annual Town Meeting Warrant 

& RSU #14 Budget Elections at Jordan Small Middle School Gym – 7:00am to 
8:00pm 
 



Page 4 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
Select Board Meeting Agenda                     (Page 3 of 3)                      May 7, 2024 

c) Reminder of Upcoming Holiday Schedule 
● Monday, May 27th – Memorial Day 

 
10) Executive Session(s) 

a) Consideration and Award of Scholarship Applications and Student Recognition -
Pursuant to MRSA 1 §405 (6)(F) 
 

11) Adjournment 



Page 5www.raymondmaine.org

Special Town Meeting Warrant



Page 6 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 7www.raymondmaine.org



Page 8 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 1 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

 

SELECT BOARD 
Minutes 

 
April 4, 2024 – CANCELLED DUE TO 

STORM 
 

RESCHEDULED TO April 8, 2024 
 

5:30pm – Regular Meeting 
 

At Broadcast Studio &  
Via Zoom & on YouTube 

Resolution:  We, the Raymond Select Board, recognize our individual and collective responsibilities as leaders and representatives of our 
community.  To this end, we pledge to conduct ourselves in a manner befitting these roles and duties.  We pledge and encourage others to 
“Be the Influence” and to recognize that decisions matter. 

 
Select Board members in attendance:  Joe Bruno – Chair, Rolf Olsen – Vice Chair, Teresa 
Sadak, Derek Ray 
Absent: Samuel Gifford 
 
Town Staff in attendance: 
 Sue Look – Town Manager 
 Melanie Fernald – Town Clerk 
 Nathan White – Public Works Director 
 Charisse Keach – Finance Director 
 Bruce Tupper – Fire Chief 
 Wayne Jones - Fire Inspector 
 Chris Hanson – Interim Code Enforcement Officer 
  

1) Called regular meeting to order at 5:31pm by Chair Bruno with a quorum present 
 

2) Minutes of previous meetings 
a) March 25, 2024 

Motion to approve as presented by Select Olsen.  Seconded by Select Sadak. 
Unanimously approved 
  

3) *Executive Session(s) 
a) Discussion of Code Enforcement with Attorney – pursuant to 1 MRSA §405 (6) (E) 

Motion to enter executive session at 5:31pm as noted above by Select Sadak.  
Seconded by Select Ray. 
Unanimously approved 
 
Motion to leave executive session at 5:47pm by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select 
Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 
Attorney Eric Wycoff described the Settlement Agreement with Management Controls, 
LLC, Q-Team, Inc., Durant Excavating, LLC, Big Lake Marine, LLC, and Robert 

Previous Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2024



Page 9www.raymondmaine.org

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 2 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

Durant.  A copy of the agreement in its entirety is posted on the Town’s website.  Q-
Team agrees to pay the Town $10,000 in penalties and the Town’s lawsuit and claims 
against them will be dismissed.  Management Controls, Robert Durant, Durant 
Excavating and Big Lake Marine will be jointly and severally liable for restoring the 
sites, in accordance with the restoration plan that was approved by the Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection and which the Town has agreed to.  That 
restoration will be completed by October 31, 2025 (or October 31, 2026 if the Durant 
parties do not perform the restoration work).  The parties have agreed to engage with 
a third-party Engineer to keep track of the restoration and to ensure that the work 
complies with the approved plan.  The Management Controls and Durant parties have 
also agreed to be jointly and severally responsible to pay the Town a total of $640,000 
which will allow the Town to recover attorney’s fees and the costs that it has incurred 
in connection with enforcement issues, which Maine statutes don’t permit.  
Chair Bruno recapped: $540,000 will be paid by June 15, 2024 with the remaining 
$100,000 to be paid by October 31, 2024.  Q-Team will pay $10,000 by April 15, 2024.  
As close to full restoration of the properties as possible, over the next two years. There 
are also penalties for non-performance of up to $2,500/day.   
 

4) New Business 
a) *Consideration of Approval of Settlement Agreement with Management Controls, LLC, 

Q-Team, Inc., Durant Excavating, LLC, Big Lake Marine, LLC, and Robert Durant  
To resolve notices of violation relating to land use violations at 18 Fernwood Road that 
were issued to Management Controls on December 16, 2021, to Durant Excavating 
on December 21, 2021, to Q-Team on January 25, 2022, to Big Lake Marine on March 
10, 2022, and to Durant, d/b/a “Big Lake Marine Construction,” on March 10, 2022; 
and to resolve notices of violations relating to land use violations at 28 Whitetail Lane 
that were issued to Management Controls on January 28, 2022, to Durant Excavating 
in January 28, 2022, to Big Lake Marine on March 10, 2022, and to Durant, d/b/a “Big 
Lake Marine Construction,” on March 10, 2022. 
Motion to approve the Settlement Agreement with Management Controls, LLC, Q-
Team, Inc., Durant Excavating, LLC, Big Lake Marine, LLC, and Robert Durant as 
presented and authorize the Town Manager to sign by Select Olsen.  Seconded by 
Select Sadak. 
Discussion:   
Denis Morse, 340 Cape Road – asked about the fees; how much of the amount to be 
collected is penalty?  Chair Bruno clarified that it depends on how you look at it.  
Restoration of the property is the biggest cost to the parties; these fees allow the Town 
to recover all the attorney’s fees associated with the matter.   
Peter Leavitt, 2 Leavitt Road – complimented everyone involved.  Similar to the last 
question, he thinks we should send a message, put a name on it; use this situation as 
an example of what happens when Codes are violated.  Chair Bruno summarized the 
breakdown as $440,000 in recoverable attorney fees and a $200,000 fine.   
Chris Hanson spoke to those who had wished for higher fines on this matter.  There 
are no guarantees on a judge ruling for recouperation of attorney fees.  A straight-
forward case in the past was ruled that the violation was to be corrected, but the Town 
was still out the attorney fees.  This was the safest route for the Town to take. 
Chair Bruno pointed out that the Mediator highly recommended that the Town resolve 



Page 10 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 3 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

the issue this way, because it could be dragged out for another few years and we may 
not recover this amount.   
Unanimously approved 
 

b) Consideration of New Business License Application – Jennifer Gillies, owner of Thrive 
Medical Aesthetics & Wellness 
Chair Bruno asked Wayne Jones, Fire Inspector, about any deficiencies.  Violations 
are being handled/improved.  The annual fire alarm inspection expires on the 2nd, they 
have an appointment scheduled for June 3rd.  The other item is the treatment of the 
materials in the exit passageway to reduce their combustibility.  His recommendation 
is that the Select Board approve the license conditional on the successful fire alarm 
test and treating the materials in the exit passageway and waiting area.   
The full building has one fire alarm which signals for the entire building.   
Motion to approve conditionally by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 
 

c) Consideration of Appointment of New Town Clerk/Registrar – Sue Look, Town 
Manager 
Melanie Fernald has accepted the position and comes to us as a Certified Clerk of 
Maine.  She has been an Assistant & Deputy City Clerk of Westbrook, is originally 
from Westbrook and currently resides in Gorham.  Her family has a place on Crescent 
Lake. 
Mrs Look noted that she’s excited about filling this position.  There are differences in 
the forms of government in a City like Westbrook and a Town like Raymond, so there 
will be a lot to learn.   
Ms. Fernald is excited to take the next step in her career and is grateful that Raymond 
is where the next step has led her.  Grew up summering on Crescent Lake, so this 
community is special to her.   
Motion to appoint Melanie Fernald as Registrar of Voters for Raymond by Select 
Sadak.  Seconded by Select Ray. 
Motion to appoint Melanie Fernald as Raymond Town Clerk by Select Sadak.  
Seconded by Select Ray.   
Unanimously approved 
 

d) Consideration of Using TIF Funds and/or Bonding for Municipal Fiber Ring 
(Broadband) – Sue Look, Town Manager 
Mrs. Look mentioned that the Town’s attorney said TIF money can be used to pay for 
Broadband – but the way the TIF is written, we can only use monies for the portion 
within the TIF district itself.  That would only cover a small percentage of the whole 
project’s expenses.  To change the wording of the TIF, so it could cover the whole cost, 
we would need to vote at a Special Town Meeting.  We can bond but cannot use a 
tax-exempt bond; it would have to be a taxable bond.  The Town does not pay the 
taxes on that, but the one issuing the bond does.  They pass along the cost of those 
fees in the form of a higher interest rate.   



Page 11www.raymondmaine.org

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 4 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

Chair Bruno asked Cherisse to speak on how much CIP money is available to help 
cover the cost of the project: $363,000.  The total cost of the project is $805,000.   
Discussion about whether to pull the article about Bonding the cost from the current 
Warrant and hold a Special Town Meeting in early May to change the wording of the 
TIF so it would allow the TIF funds to cover the costs.  Chair Bruno and Mr. Olsen 
suggested to leave the bond item on the warrant for the June Annual Town Meeting, 
and to additionally hold a Special Town Meeting in May on the rewording of the TIF to 
allow the use of that money to cover the cost outside the TIF district.  Keeping both 
options open will allow a choice of the better option.   
By consensus item approved to remain on the warrant for bonding and to set a 
Special Town Meeting for May 7, 2024 to vote on rewording the TIF to allow monies 
to be used to fund the broadband project outside of the TIF district 

 
e) Consideration of Recommendations for Ordinance Change Annual Town Meeting 

Warrant Articles – Select Board 
 
ARTICLE 28: Referendum Question Z: Shall the Building Construction Ordinance be 
adopted as in Addendum 2? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed new ordinance is available for review and inspection at 
the Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling 
place prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 28 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 28 
 
Summary of Changes:  

This newly adopted ordinance would organize the existing enforced codes required by 
State law, with the intent of making the information easier to find for the general public, 
designers, engineers, etc.  

 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 
 



Page 12 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 5 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

 
ARTICLE 29: Referendum Question AA: Shall § 300-9.26. – Accessory Dwelling Units, and 
§ 300-9.12.2. – Terms Defined, of the Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and 
amended through June 13, 2023; and § 350-6.27. – Accessory Dwelling Units, and § 350-8.2. 
– Terms Defined, of the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and amended 
through June 13, 2023, be further amended by adding the underscored language and 
removing the language in strikeout text as in Addendum 3? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 29 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 29 
 
Summary of Changes:  

The proposed amendment is necessary in order to maintain consistency with the new 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) law contained within LD 2003, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4364-B. 
Additional changes are proposed, which will relax the current rules in place and allow for 
ADUs in parts of the shoreland zone where they are not currently allowed. Also included is 
an increase to the allowed square footage for an accessory dwelling unit.  

 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 

 
 
ARTICLE 30: Referendum Question AB: Shall § 300-13.3. – General Requirements, and § 
300-12.2. – Terms Defined, of the Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and 
amended through June 13, 2023, be further amended by adding the underscored language 
and removing the language in strikeout text as in Addendum 4? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 30 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 30 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

The proposed amendment would allow higher density development for Affordable Housing 
Development within an Open Space Subdivision. 

 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 

 



Page 13www.raymondmaine.org

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 6 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

 
ARTICLE 31: Referendum Question AC: Shall § 300-9.27. – Solar Energy Systems, of the 
Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and amended through June 13, 2023, be 
further amended by adding the underscored language and removing the language in strikeout 
text as in Addendum 5? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 31 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 31 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

This amendment to the Land Use Ordinance would amend the existing solar energy 
systems section of the Land Use Ordinance to include specific buffering requirements from 
abutting residential uses.  

  
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 
 
 
ARTICLE 32: Referendum Question AD: Shall § 300-3 – Conformance with Ordinance, and 
§ 300-12.2. – Terms Defined, of the Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and 
amended through June 13, 2023, be further amended by adding the underscored language 
and removing the language in strikeout text as in Addendum 6? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 32 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 32 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

This amendment to the Land Use Ordinance would amend sections in Article 9 that were 
found to be inconsistent or lacking clarity following a legal analysis performed by an 
independent contractor hired by the Town.   

 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 

 



Page 14 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 7 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

 
ARTICLE 33: Referendum Question AE: Shall the Town of Raymond vote to repeal the 
“Building Code of the Town of Raymond for Flood Damage Prevention Requirements” adopted 
March 31, 1981, and amended through March 15, 1997, and replace with a new Floodplain 
Management Ordinance as in Addendum 7? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 33 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 33 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

Repeal and replace the existing outdated ordinance to maintain mandatory compliance. 
 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 

 
 
ARTICLE 34: Referendum Question AF: Shall the Business License Ordinance, as adopted 
July 14, 2020, be amended by adding the underscored language and removing the language 
in strikeout text as in Addendum 8? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 34 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 34 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

The proposed changes makes the license application one-time, removing the language for 
renewing the license. 

 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 

 



Page 15www.raymondmaine.org

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 8 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

 
ARTICLE 35: Referendum Question AG: Shall § 300-2.2. – Land Use Regulation Map, and 
§ 350-2.1. – Districts And Zoning Map, as amended through June 13, 2023, be updated as 
shown in Addendum 9? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 35 
Select Board recommends/does not recommend Article 35 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

Change the zone from LRR2 to VR for a section of Main Street. 
 
Motion to recommend as presented above by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen.  
Select Ray recused himself from the vote, due to owning property on Main Street.   
Motion passed 3-0-1-1 (3 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent, 1 abstaining) 

 
f) Final Approval of Annual Town Meeting Warrant – Select Board 

Select Olsen clarified the vote and motion made by the Budget-Finance Committee at 
their last meeting on Article 26 (referencing the Public Works garage) – their vote on 
failed motion was not reconsidered before the new motion was made; this makes the 
motion and vote on the motion to “not recommend” improper, according to Robert’s 
Rules of Order.  The warrant article will read “Budget-Finance Committee makes no 
recommendation on Article 26.” 
Motion to approve the final Annual Town Meeting Warrant by Select Sadak.  
Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Chair Bruno noted some misstatements made at the Budget-Finance Committee 
meeting on the item for the Public Works garage.  He showed schematics and plans 
that have been created for the proposed garage.  Nathan White noted the timeline for 
plans development, bids, etc. for the project.   
Unanimously approved 

 
g) *Consideration of Appointing Interim CEO – Sue Look, Town Manager 

The CEO position has been posted as the Direct of Code Enforcement and Planning 
which better aligns with the role Alex Sirois had been filling.  CEO Hanson has very 
graciously agreed to act as our Interim CEO while we are searching. 
Motion to appoint Chris Hanson as the Interim Code Enforcement Officer by Select 
Sadak.  Seconded by Select Olsen. 
Unanimously approved 

 
h) Consideration of Appointing a Representative to the Maine Waste to Energy Board – 

Sue Look, Town Manager 



Page 16 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

*Taken out of order 
Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 9 of 9)                   April 4, 2024  April 8, 2024 

I would like to nominate our Public Works Director, Nathan White as Raymond’s 
representative to the Maine Waste to Energy Board. 
Motion to approve by Select Olsen.  Seconded by Select Sadak. 
Unanimously approved 
 

5) Public Comment 
Peter Leavitt, 2 Leavitt Road – in looking at the Interim CEO appointment item on the 
agenda, he noted the addition of “Planner” in the Code Enforcement position.  Asked for 
some elaboration on that change.  Alex Sirois helped shape the job description for his 
replacement and felt this addition would help bring in a much better candidate pool.  This 
would not eliminate the need for the planner used through Sebago Technics 
Fire Chief Tupper – overview of storm last week, number of calls for service.  Public Works 
and Fire & Rescue were inundated with calls as a result of the storm.  The Fire & Rescue 
Department had additional staff available and set up an Emergency Operations Center 
beginning at 5am the first morning and handled over 60 incidents of tree and wire issues, 
medical incidents and a large fire.  Improved internet is needed to handle calls during 
power, phone and internet outages like we experienced during this storm.  Chief needed 
to use his personal cell phone to help with communications.  Those calls were not properly 
recorded, so the number of calls they handled will continue to rise as they are documented 
in the system.  Thanked mutual aid communities that came out to help with the fire. 
Thanked Chair Bruno for pizza dinner, thanked Public Works for support through the 
storm, including Nathan who brought the Town’s excavator out to the site to help knock 
down the dangerous portions of the building, so they could get to the rest of the active 
fire.   

6) Selectman Comment 
Select Sadak thanked Public Works & Public Safety staff for their long hours and hard 
work during the storm. 
Chair Bruno thanked Fire Department team during the fire over the weekend.  Seeing 
them in action opened his eyes to their bravery and their hard work.   
 

7) Town Manager's Report and Communications 
Budget season is almost done 
a) Confirm Dates for Upcoming Regular Meetings 

● May 7, 2024 – also a Special Town Meeting 
● June 25, 2024 – later than usual, because of the Election earlier in the month. 

 
8) Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn at 7:23pm by Select Sadak.  Seconded by Select Ray. 
Unanimously approved 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Melanie Fernald, Town Clerk 



Page 17www.raymondmaine.org

 
Emergency Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 1 of 3)                   April 26, 2024 

 

SELECT BOARD 
Emergency Meeting Minutes 

 
 

April 26, 2024 
 

9:00AM – Emergency Meeting 
 

Via Zoom  

Resolution:  We, the Raymond Select Board, recognize our individual and collective responsibilities as leaders and representatives of our 
community.  To this end, we pledge to conduct ourselves in a manner befitting these roles and duties.  We pledge and encourage others to 
“Be the Influence” and to recognize that decisions matter. 

 
Select Board members in attendance:  Joe Bruno – Chair, Samuel Gifford, Derek Ray 
Absent: Rolf Olsen – Vice Chair, Teresa Sadak 
 
Town Staff in attendance: 
 Sue Look – Town Manager 
 Melanie Fernald – Town Clerk 
 

1) Called Emergency Meeting to order at 9:03AM by Chair Bruno with a quorum 
 

2) New Business 
a) Consideration of Approval of Special Town Meeting Warrant  

WARRANT FOR SPECIAL TOWN MEETING 
on  

May 7, 2024 
 

To Don McClellan, a resident in the Town of Raymond in the County of Cumberland, State of Maine. 
 
Greetings: 
  
 In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of 
the Town of Raymond, in said county and in said state, qualified to vote in Town affairs, to meet at the 
Broadcast Studio located at 423 Webbs Mills Road, in said Town, on May 7, 2024, at 5:30pm to act on 
articles 1 and 2, such article pursuant to the Order attached to this warrant and consistent with such 
Development Program document on file at the Town Office during business hours: 
 

ARTICLE 1 
 To choose by written ballot a moderator to preside at said meeting. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
 

Shall the voters of the Town of Raymond, Maine adopt the First Amendment to the Portland 
Natural Gas Transition System Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District, 
such adoption to be pursuant to the following findings, terms and provisions?    

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Raymond (the “Town”) is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of 
the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, to amend previously established tax increment financing (“TIF”) 

Previous Meeting Minutes - April 26, 2024



Page 18 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
Emergency Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 2 of 3)                   April 26, 2024 

districts and development programs within the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town designated the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “District”) and adopted a Development Program 
for the District on September 15, 1998 and March 20, 1999 in order to capture the value of real and 
personal property improvements made within the District and to enable the use of TIF revenues for various 
municipal and other economic development projects, which received approval from the Maine Department 
of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) on March 31, 1999; and 
WHEREAS, amending the Development Program for the District will help to continue to promote 
economic development within the Town and the surrounding region; improve and broaden the tax base of 
the Town; and improve the economy of the Town and the State of Maine; and, specifically, will allow the 
Town the ability to use TIF funds for costs associated with broadband and fiber optics expansion projects.; 
and 
WHEREAS, the Select Board has held a public hearing on May 7, 2024, upon at least ten (10) days prior 
notice published in a newspaper of general circulation within the Town, on the question of adopting the 
First Amendment to the Development Program for the District in accordance with the requirements of 
30-A M.R.S. § 5226; and 
WHEREAS, the Town has considered the comments provided at the public hearing, both for and against 
the adoption of the First Amendment to the Development Program, if any; and 
WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be sought and obtained from DECD approving the First 
Amendment to the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Municipal Development and Tax Increment 
Financing District and Development Program (the “First Amendment”).  
 
NOW, THEREFORE: 
 
Section 1. The Town hereby adopts the First Amendment to the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System 
Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District and Development Program, pursuant to the 
following findings, terms, and provisions:  
 
 a.  Pursuant to Title 30-A M.R.S. Section 5226(5) pertaining to TIF district and development 
program amendments, this First Amendment to the Development Program does not result in the District 
being out of compliance with any of the conditions of 30-A M.R.S. Section 5223(3) which pertain to the 
percentage of area within the District that is suitable for commercial use, the TIF acreage caps for single 
TIF districts and for all TIF districts in the Town, and the total TIF district valuation cap. 
 b. The First Amendment to the Development Program will make a contribution to the 
economic growth and well-being of the Town and the surrounding region, and will contribute to the 
betterment of the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the Town, including a broadened and 
improved tax base and economic stimulus, and therefore constitutes a good and valid public purpose. The 
Town has considered all evidence, if any, presented to it at the required public hearing with regard to any 
adverse economic effect on or detriment to any existing business and has found and determined that such 
adverse economic effect on or detriment to any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution 
expected to be made through the District and the Development Program. 
 
Section 2.    Pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, the Town 
hereby amends the District designated and described more particularly set forth in the “First Amendment 
to the Portland Natural Gas Transmission System Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
Development Program” presented to the Town Meeting in the form attached hereto and such Development 
Program is hereby incorporated by reference into this vote as the First Amendment to the Development 
Program for the District. 
 
Section 3. The Town Manager, or duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized, empowered and 



Page 19www.raymondmaine.org

 
Emergency Select Board Meeting Minutes                     (Page 3 of 3)                   April 26, 2024 

directed to submit the First Amendment to the Development Program to DECD for review and approval 
pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S. § 5226.  
Section 4. The foregoing adoption of the First Amendment shall automatically become final and shall take 
full force and effect upon receipt by the Town of approval of the First Amendment by DECD, without 
requirement of any further action by the Town, the Select Board, or any other party.  
Section 5. The Town Manager, or duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized and empowered, at 
their discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the documents related to the First Amendment 
they may deem reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and 
approval of the First Amendment by DECD, so long as such revisions are not inconsistent with these 
resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Select Board in adopting the First Amendment. 
Section 6. This Order shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  
 
 
Give this ______ day of _______ 2024,  
 
RAYMOND SELECT BOARD 
 
 
              
Joseph Bruno, Chair     Rolf Olsen, Vice Chair & Parliamentarian 
 
 
             
Teresa Sadak      Samuel Gifford   
 
 
      
Derek Ray       
 
Motion to approve the Warrant for a Special Town Meeting on May 7, 2024, by Select Gifford.  
Seconded by Select Ray. 
Unanimously approved 
 

3) Public Comment 
none 
 

4) Selectman Comment 
none 

 
5) Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn at 9:05am by Select Gifford.  Seconded by Chair Bruno. 
Unanimously approved 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Melanie Fernald, Town Clerk 



Page 20 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

1 
 

 
 
ARTICLE 3: Referendum Question A: To see if the Town will vote to: 

1. Set the date the 1st half of taxes due to October 31, 2024, and the 2nd half of taxes due 
to April 30, 2025; 

2. Set the interest rate for unpaid balances and for abated taxes at eight and a half 
percent (8.5%) for the fiscal year;  

3. Authorize the Tax Collector or Treasurer to accept prepayments of taxes not yet 
committed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. §506, with no interest; and  

4. Authorize the Select Board on behalf of the Town to sell and dispose of any property 
acquired by the Town for nonpayment of taxes pursuant to the policy adopted by the 
Select Board, as may be amended from time to time, the policy to remain consistent 
with State statutes and laws; in all cases conveyance to be made by municipal 
quitclaim deed. 

 
Select Board recommends Article 3 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 3 

 
 
ARTICLE 4: Referendum Question B: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$1,803,516 for General Government Services (Administration; Assessing; Code Enforcement; 
Recreation; Technology; and General Assistance).   
 
The budget figures will be assigned as follows: 

Administration $836,969 
Assessing $114,870 
Code Enforcement $340,034 
Recreation $268,381 
Technology $228,262 
General Assistance $15,000 

 
Select Board recommends Article 4 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 4 

 
 
ARTICLE 5: Referendum Question C: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$1,757,387 for Public Works.   
 
The budget figures will be assigned as follows: 

 Public Works $1,236,096 
Town Buildings $51,237 
Solid Waste $443,624 
Cemeteries $26,430 

 
Select Board recommends Article 5 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 5 

 

Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles for Public Hearing



Page 21www.raymondmaine.org

2 
 

 
ARTICLE 6: Referendum Question D: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$1,887,305 for Public Safety.   
 
The budget figures will be assigned as follows: 

Fire/Rescue Department $1,840,162 
Animal Control $47,143 

 
Select Board recommends Article 6 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 6 

 
 
ARTICLE 7: Referendum Question E: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select 
Board to dispose of Town owned personal property with value not to exceed $75,000. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 7 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 7 

 
 
ARTICLE 8: Referendum Question F: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select 
Board to appropriate from undesignated fund balance (surplus) to meet the unanticipated 
needs of the community that occur during the fiscal year and/or to adjust the tax rate as the 
Select Board deem advisable, an amount not to exceed $75,000. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 8 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 8 

 
 
ARTICLE 9: Referendum Question G: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select 
Board to transfer funds between appropriation accounts as long as the grand total of all 
appropriation is not exceeded, any such transfers to be approved only at a properly called 
public meeting of the Select Board. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 9 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 9 

 
 
ARTICLE 10: Referendum Question H: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select 
Board to: 

• Allow Town Staff to make application for and execute any documents related to a grant; 
• Accept or reject grants, donations and/or gifts of money to the Town of Raymond; and 
• Authorize the expenditure of monies awarded, donated and/or gifted for the purposes 

specified in the grant, donation, and/or gift. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 10 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 10 

 



Page 22 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

3 
 

 
ARTICLE 11: Referendum Question I: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select 
Board to appropriate from undesignated fund balance (surplus) to reduce the property tax 
commitment as the Select Board deem advisable an amount not to exceed $700,000. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 11 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 11 

 
 
ARTICLE 12: Referendum Question J: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate $341,097 
from the tax increment of the Pipeline/RT 302 Tax Increment Financing District for FY 2024-
2025 project proposed in the Tax Increment Financing District Development Program (for 
details see Addendum 1). 
 
Select Board recommends Article 12 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 12 

 
 
ARTICLE 13: Referendum Question K: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from the 
Tassel Top Park Enterprise fund the amount of $121,515 for the administration of activities at 
the Park, and to allocate all revenues generated by Park operations to be recorded in and 
retained by the Tassel Top Park Enterprise fund. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 13 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 13 

 
 
ARTICLE 14: Referendum Question L: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from the 
Recreation Programs special revenue fund the amount of $130,350 for the administration of 
activities at the programs, and to allocate all revenues generated by program operations to be 
recorded in and retained by the Recreation Programs Enterprise fund. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 14 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 14 

 
 
ARTICLE 15: Referendum Question M: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$613,918 for Debt Services.   
 
The budget figures will be assigned as follows: 

2013 Public Works Road Construction Bond $202,500 
2015 Public Works Sand/Salt Construction and Public 
Safety Replacement Engine Bond $85,850 

2022 Lease Purchase Rescue Pumper Truck $49,568 
2023 Tassel Top Snack Shack & PW Garage Design $276,000 

 
Select Board recommends Article 15 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 15 

 



Page 23www.raymondmaine.org
4 

 

 
ARTICLE 16: Referendum Question N: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$215,925 for the Raymond Village Library.   
 
Select Board recommends Article 16 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 16 

 
 
ARTICLE 17: Referendum Question O: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$1,015,000 for the Capital Improvement Program.   
 
The budget figures will be assigned as follows: 

Public Works Equipment Reserve $225,000 
Public Works Paving/Road Reserve $410,000 
Municipal Facilities Improvements $85,000 
Technology $100,000 
Revaluation Reserve $45,000 
Public Safety Fire Apparatus $115,000 
Playground Improvements $35,000 

 
Select Board recommends Article 17 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 17 

 
 
ARTICLE 18: Referendum Question P: To see whether the Town will vote to carry forward 
any existing fund balance in the Capital Improvement Program (C.I.P.) accounts, the 
Healthcare Reimbursement Accounts (H.R.A.), and the Employee Compensation Account. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 18 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 18 

 
 
ARTICLE 19: Referendum Question Q: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$1,017,761 for the County Tax ($80,574 is the second of five (5) annual, no-interest payments 
for six (6) months of taxes, January to June 2023, and $937,187 is for the fiscal year July 2024 
to June 2025 taxes, enabling Cumberland County to move from a calendar year to a fiscal 
year assessment).   
 
Select Board recommends Article 19 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 19 

 
 
ARTICLE 20: Referendum Question R: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate 
$3,000 for Provider Agencies, $2,000 for Crescent Lake Watershed Association and $1,000 
to be used at the Town Manager’s discretion.   
 
Select Board recommends Article 20 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 20 

 



Page 24 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

5 
 

 
ARTICLE 21: Referendum Question S: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the total 
sum of $2,155,288 from estimated non-property tax revenues to reduce the property tax 
commitment, together with all categories of funds, which may be available from the federal 
government, and any other sources. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 21 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 21 

 
 
ARTICLE 22: Referendum Question T: To see if the Town will vote to accept certain State 
Funds as provided by the Maine State Legislature during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2024, and any other funds provided by any other entity including but not limited to: 
 

Municipal Revenue Sharing 
Local Road Assistance 
Emergency Management Assistance 
Snowmobile Registration Money 
Homestead Exemption 
Tree Growth Reimbursement 
General Assistance Reimbursement 
Veteran’s Exemption Reimbursement 
Business Equipment Tax Exemption (B.E.T.E.) Reimbursement 
State Grant or Other Funds 

 
Select Board recommends Article 22 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 22 

 
 
ARTICLE 23: Referendum Question U: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the use of 
Town employees and/or Town owned equipment or independent contractor(s) hired by the 
Town for maintenance on private roads in special and certain circumstances where in the 
public’s interest. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 23 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 23 

 
 
ARTICLE 24: Referendum Question V:  LD1:  To see if the Town will vote to increase the 
property tax levy limit of $3,935,385.36 established for the Town of Raymond by State law in 
the event that the municipal budget approved under the preceding articles will result in a tax 
commitment that is greater than that property tax levy limit. 
 
Select Board recommends Article 24 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 24 

 



Page 25www.raymondmaine.org

6 
 

 
ARTICLE 25: Referendum Question W: To see if the Town of Raymond will vote to change 
its plan with the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MainePERS) to add coverage 
for full-time, non-union employees effective September 1, 2024, and: 

a) To offer Regular Plan AC to its regular, full-time, non-union employees who are paid at 
least 1,664 hours per year between paid vacation, paid holiday, and paid sick time 
effective September 1, 2024; and 

b) To continue to offer Special Plan 3C to its regular, full-time firefighters and emergency 
medical services employees who are paid at least 2,080 hours per year between paid 
vacation, paid holiday, and paid sick time; and 

c) To exclude all other employees, including all other elected/appointed officials, from 
participating in MainePERS; and 

d) To allow its newly eligible employees who are currently employed by the Town on 
September 1, 2024, who elect to join MainePERS on September 1, 2024, the option to 
purchase prior service upon the employee’s full payment of all associated costs. The 
Town will not participate in the purchase of prior service and so employees who wish 
to purchase prior service are responsible for paying the full liability associated with this 
service; and  

e) To authorize the Town Manager or the Select Board Chair to sign the amended 
agreement between the Town and the Maine Public Employees Retirement System. 

Select Board recommends Article 25 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 25 

 



Page 26 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

7 
 

  
ARTICLE 26: Referendum Question X:  Shall the Town of Raymond (the "Town"):  

1. Approve a capital project including engineering and design costs, transaction costs, 
construction costs, and other expenses reasonably related thereto (the "Project") consisting of 
the building of a public works garage to be located at 170 Plains Road at an estimated cost of 
$6,200,000; 

2. Appropriate the sum of $6,200,000, plus any additional premium, to provide for the costs of the 
Project;  

3. Authorize the Town Treasurer and the Chair of the Select Board to issue general obligation 
securities of the Town (including temporary notes in anticipation of the sale thereof) in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6,200,000, plus any additional premium, to fund the 
Project; and  

4. Delegate to the Town Treasurer and the Chair of the Select Board the authority and discretion to 
fix the dates, maturities, interest rates, denominations, calls for redemption (with or without 
premium), form, and other details of said securities, including authority to execute and deliver the 
securities on behalf of the Town? 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

1. TOTAL BOND INDEBTEDNESS 

a. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $ *  1,435,000 
b. Bonds authorized and unissued (other than this loan): $ 0 
c. Maximum amount to be issued if approved: $ 6,200,000 

* $285,000 will retire in FY 2024-2025 

2. COSTS 

At an estimated maximum interest rate of 3% for a twenty (20) year maturity, the estimated cost 
of this government obligation bond will be: 

Principal $ 6,200,000.00 
Interest $ 1,910,375.00 
Total: $ 8,110,375.00 

3. VALIDITY 

The validity of the bonds and the voter's ratification of the bonds may not be affected by any 
error in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the total debt service varies from the 
estimates, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive, and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 

                                                                                              __  

Charisse Keach, Town Treasurer 

Select Board recommends Article 26 
Budget-Finance Committee does not recommend Article 26 
  



Page 27www.raymondmaine.org

8 
 

  
ARTICLE 27: Referendum Question Y:  Shall the Town of Raymond (the "Town"):  
1. Approve a capital project including engineering and design costs, transaction costs, construction 

costs, and other expenses reasonably related thereto (the "Project") consisting of the installation 
of a municipal fiber ring to connect all municipal buildings at an estimated cost of $667,000; 

2. Appropriate the sum of $667,000, plus any additional premium, to provide for the costs of the 
Project;  

3. Authorize the Town Treasurer and the Chair of the Select Board to issue general obligation 
securities of the Town (including temporary notes in anticipation of the sale thereof) in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $667,000, plus any additional premium, to fund the Project; and  

4. Delegate to the Town Treasurer and the Chair of the Select Board the authority and discretion to 
fix the dates, maturities, interest rates, denominations, calls for redemption (with or without 
premium), form, and other details of said securities, including authority to execute and deliver the 
securities on behalf of the Town? 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

5. TOTAL BOND INDEBTEDNESS 

a. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $ *  1,435,000 
b. Bonds authorized and unissued (other than this loan): $ 0 
c. Maximum amount to be issued if approved: $ 667,000 

* $285,000 will retire in FY 2024-2025 

6. COSTS 

At an estimated maximum interest rate of 3% for an eight (8) year maturity, the estimated cost 
of this government obligation bond will be: 

Principal $ 667,000.00 
Interest $ 81,317.50 
Total: $ 748,317.50 

7. VALIDITY 

The validity of the bonds and the voter's ratification of the bonds may not be affected by any 
error in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the total debt service varies from the 
estimates, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive, and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 

                                                                                              __  

Charisse Keach, Town Treasurer 

Select Board recommends Article 27 
Budget-Finance Committee recommends Article 27 
  



Page 28 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

9 
 

 
ARTICLE 28: Referendum Question Z: Shall the Building Construction Ordinance be 
adopted as in Addendum 2? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed new ordinance is available for review and inspection at 
the Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling 
place prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 28 
Select Board recommends Article 28 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

This newly adopted ordinance would organize the existing enforced codes required by 
State law, with the intent of making the information easier to find for the general public, 
designers, engineers, etc.  

 
 
ARTICLE 29: Referendum Question AA: Shall § 300-9.26. – Accessory Dwelling Units, and 
§ 300-9.12.2. – Terms Defined, of the Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and 
amended through June 13, 2023; and § 350-6.27. – Accessory Dwelling Units, and § 350-8.2. 
– Terms Defined, of the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and amended 
through June 13, 2023, be further amended by adding the underscored language and 
removing the language in strikeout text as in Addendum 3? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 29 
Select Board recommends Article 29 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

The proposed amendment is necessary in order to maintain consistency with the new 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) law contained within LD 2003, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4364-B. 
Additional changes are proposed, which will relax the current rules in place and allow for 
ADUs in parts of the shoreland zone where they are not currently allowed. Also included is 
an increase to the allowed square footage for an accessory dwelling unit.  
 



Page 29www.raymondmaine.org

10 
 

 
ARTICLE 30: Referendum Question AB: Shall § 300-13.3. – General Requirements, and § 
300-12.2. – Terms Defined, of the Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and 
amended through June 13, 2023, be further amended by adding the underscored language 
and removing the language in strikeout text as in Addendum 4? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 30 
Select Board recommends Article 30 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

The proposed amendment would allow higher density development for Affordable Housing 
Development within an Open Space Subdivision. 
 

 
ARTICLE 31: Referendum Question AC: Shall § 300-9.27. – Solar Energy Systems, of the 
Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and amended through June 13, 2023, be 
further amended by adding the underscored language and removing the language in strikeout 
text as in Addendum 5? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 31 
Select Board recommends Article 31 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

This amendment to the Land Use Ordinance would amend the existing solar energy 
systems section of the Land Use Ordinance to include specific buffering requirements from 
abutting residential uses.  

  



Page 30 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

11 
 

 
ARTICLE 32: Referendum Question AD: Shall § 300-3 – Conformance with Ordinance, and 
§ 300-12.2. – Terms Defined, of the Land Use Ordinance, as adopted May 21, 1994, and 
amended through June 13, 2023, be further amended by adding the underscored language 
and removing the language in strikeout text as in Addendum 6? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 32 
Select Board recommends Article 32 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

This amendment to the Land Use Ordinance would amend sections in Article 9 that were 
found to be inconsistent or lacking clarity following a legal analysis performed by an 
independent contractor hired by the Town.   
 

 
ARTICLE 33: Referendum Question AE: Shall the Town of Raymond vote to repeal the 
“Building Code of the Town of Raymond for Flood Damage Prevention Requirements” adopted 
March 31, 1981, and amended through March 15, 1997, and replace with a new Floodplain 
Management Ordinance as in Addendum 7? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 33 
Select Board recommends Article 33 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

Repeal and replace the existing outdated ordinance to maintain mandatory compliance. 
 



Page 31www.raymondmaine.org

12 
 

 
ARTICLE 34: Referendum Question AF: Shall the Business License Ordinance, as adopted 
July 14, 2020, be amended by adding the underscored language and removing the language 
in strikeout text as in Addendum 8? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 34 
Select Board recommends Article 34 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

The proposed changes makes the license application one-time, removing the language for 
renewing the license. 
 

 
ARTICLE 35: Referendum Question AG: Shall § 300-2.2. – Land Use Regulation Map, and 
§ 350-2.1. – Districts And Zoning Map, as amended through June 13, 2023, be updated as 
shown in Addendum 9? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Planning Board recommends Article 35 
Select Board recommends Article 35 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

Change the zone from LRR2 to VR for a section of Main Street. 
 

 
       



Page 32 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

PROJECT TEAM:
Sebago Technics, Inc.
Grant Hays Associates
Allied Engineering, Inc.

▪ Introductions
▪ Existing Conditions, Programming & Needs Assessment
▪ Current Public Works Facility Conditions Assessment
▪ Proposed Public Works Facilities
▪ Cost 
▪ Timeline

Article 26 - Proposed Public Works Garage



Page 33www.raymondmaine.org

Sebago Technics
(Project Lead)

Owens McCullough, PE, LEED-AP

Grant Hays Associates
Architecture

Programming

Allied Engineering
Structural

Mechanical
Electrical

HVAC
Plumbing

Sebago Technics
Civil Engineering

Surveying/Geomatics
Transportation

Landscape Architecture
Planning & Permitting

Environmental & Natural Resources
GIS, CAD, & 3D Modeling

Existing Conditions Evaluation?
• An Existing Conditions Evaluation is an assessment to review a 

building’s condition, usefulness, review code considerations, 
review mechanical, electrical, plumbing, structural heating and 
ventilation systems.

What is a Programming & Needs Study?

• A Programming & Needs Study is a comprehensive look at the 
needs and functional spaces needed for a specific use.



Page 34 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Building Attributes Public Works 
Square Footage 3,900 s.f. Public Works Portion of 

Building 
Year Built 1989 Addition to Original Bldg.
Type of Construction Masonry, Shingle Roof
Location 387 Webbs Mill Road
Parcel Size 7.84 Acres Assessor



Page 35www.raymondmaine.org

• Inadequate lateral support at roof eave level for top of 12” perimeter CMU 
walls along gable endwall……..

• Inadequate anchorage of roof truss ends to tops of 12” perimeter CMU walls 
for uplift loads on roof surface………….. 

• Inadequate shear wall capacity along front perimeter 12” CMU wall given 
almost entire front wall is made of overhead door openings………..

• Inadequate ability for perimeter 12” CMU walls to span vertically from 
foundation level to roof level for lateral loads…………….. 

• Inadequate load capacity of 24” +/- wide portion of 12” CMU perimeter wall 
along front wall between the two 14’ wide overhead doors……………

• It is reported that the domestic water is high in sulfur. Occupants of the facility 
are furnished bottle water for drinking.

• Plumbing fixtures at the end of their published useful service. 
• The plumbing fixtures do not comply with ADA requirements for accessibility. 
• Hot and cold water piping is uninsulated throughout and not in compliance 

with current energy requirements.
• The domestic water heater appears to be in good overall condition and sized 

appropriately for the current use. 
• No air supply or ventilation.
• Refer to Allied Engineering Assessment. 

Building Attributes Public Works 
Square Footage • 840 S.F. IRT Re-Purposed 

Trailer (14’x60’)
• Laminated Arch Cold Storage 

(60’x104’)
• Laminated Arch Sand/Salt 

Storage Building (80’x125’)

Year Built Laminated Arch Buildings (1989
and 2015)

Type of Construction Laminated Arch and Portable 
Trailer

Location 170 Plains Road
Parcel Size 13.96 Acres 



Page 36 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 37 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

• In general, this is a trailer, there is not much we would recommend as a 
valuable electrical upgrade to it……

• The lighting should be updated with new linear LED light fixtures…….
• Fire alarm and life safety deficiencies.
• ADA deficiencies.
• Portable trailer construction and not intended as a permeant facility.

Refer to Allied Engineering and Grant Hays Assessments.

Existing Facilities Provide 4,740 s.f. +/-
Needed: 14,940 s.f. 













Page 43www.raymondmaine.org

JUNE 
REFERENDUM 

SITE PLAN 
REVIEW & 
APPROVAL
AUGUST –

OCTOBER, 2024

SEPTEMBER –
NOVEMBER 2024
DESIGN-BUILD 

PLANS AND 
ISSUE RFP

DECEMBER 2024
AWARD DB 
CONTRACT

JANUARY 2025 
THRU MARCH 

2026
CONSTRUCTION 

FALL 2025 OR 
SPRING 2026
OCCUPANCY



Page 44 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 1 

 
CODE ANALYSIS – EXISTING 4-BAY MAINTENANCE BUILDING 

 
NFPA 101 Life Safety Code - 2021 Edition   
 
Building Classification:   Existing 4-Bay Public Works Garage Facility – 4,000 sf  
Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  
Construction Type:   Type III (000) 
Occupant Loads:   4,000 sf Storage @ MP = 4 occupants 
     Total Occupant Load = 4 occupants 
Separation of Use Rating:  2 hours 
Janitor, Mech, Stor Rating:  1 hour 
Minimum Headroom:   7’-6” at occupied areas 
 
Building Uses / Non-Sprinkled   Storage       
 
Max. Allowable Travel Distance:  200’     
Max. Allowable Common Path:   50’    
Max. Dead End Corridor Length:  50’      
Minimum Egress Corridor Width:  44”/36” (if under 50 occ.)    
Minimum Number of Required Exits  2      
Minimum Horz Egress Enclosure rating:  none     
Minimum Separation of exits:   0.5 diagonal’    
Minimum Egress Door Width:   36”     
 
Exit Lighting:     Required    
Emergency Lighting:    Required    
Fire Alarm System:    Not Required    
Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required    
Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required   
Exit Devices/Panic Hardware   Not Required (less than 50 occ.)   
Smoke Detection/Alarm System   Required    
 
Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms   
Storage          A      B     

 
 
2015 International Building Code 
 
Building Classification:   Existing 4-Bay Public Works Garage Facility – 4,000 sf  
Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  
Construction Type:   Type 3B 
Occupant Loads:   4,000 sf Storage @ 300 sf / occ. =14 occupants 
     Total Occupant Load = 14 occupants 

 
Building Limitations – Non-Sprinkled         
Construction Type:    3B Unprotected 
Maximum Height:    55’ / 3 stories 
Maximum Area / Floor:    17,500 sf 
Actual Area/Height:    4,000 sf / 30’ max / 1 story 

  
Fire Resistance Ratings 
Load Bearing Exterior Walls:   None 
Structural Frame:    None 
Load Bearing Floors:    None 



Page 45www.raymondmaine.org

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 2 

Roof Structure:     None 
Load Bearing Interior Walls:   None 
Fire Separation of Uses:    2 hours 
Exit Corridors:     1 hour 
Minimum Number of Exits:   2  
Maximum Dead End Corridor Length:  20’ 
Maximum Common Travel Path:  75’ 
Maximum Travel Distance:   200’ 
Minimum Corridor Width:   44”/36” (if less than 50 occ.) 
 
Fire Alarm System:    Not Required 
Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required  
Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required 
Exit Lighting     Required 
Emergency Lighting    Required 
 
Building Live Loads 
Storage:     125 psf @ light; 250 psf @ heavy 
 
Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 
Storage         C      C 

 
 
 

End of Analysis 



Page 46 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 1 

 

CODE ANALYSIS – PROPOSED NEW MAINTENANCE FACILITY 

 

NFPA 101 Life Safety Code - 2021 Edition   

 

Building Classification:   New Public Works Facility – 14,040 sf – Non-Sprinkled   

Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  

Construction Type:   Type II (000) 

Occupant Loads:   11,340 sf Storage @ MP = 10 occupants 

1,112 sf Business @ 150 sf/occupant = 8 occupants 

450 sf Assembly @ 15 sf/occupant = 30 occupants 

     Total Occupant Load = 48 occupants 

Separation of Use Rating:  2 hours 

Janitor, Mech, Stor Rating:  1 hour 

Minimum Headroom:   7’-6” at occupied areas 

 

Building Uses / Non-Sprinkled   Storage   Business    

 

Max. Allowable Travel Distance:  200’    200’ 

Max. Allowable Common Path:   50’    75’ 

Max. Dead End Corridor Length:  50’    20’  

Minimum Egress Corridor Width:  44”/36”    44”/36” 

      (if less than 50 occ.)  (same) 

Minimum Number of Required Exits  2     2 

Minimum Horz Egress Enclosure rating:  none    none 

Minimum Separation of exits:   0.5 diagonal’   0.5 diagonal’ 

Minimum Egress Door Width:   36”    36” 

 

Exit Lighting:     Required   Required 

Emergency Lighting:    Required   Required 

Fire Alarm System:    Not Required   Not Required 

Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required   Not Required 

Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required   Required 

Exit Devices/Panic Hardware   Required   Required 

Smoke Detection/Alarm System   Required   Required 

 

Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 

Business/Assembly        A      B      

Storage          A      B     

 

 

2015 International Building Code 

 

Building Classification:   New Public Works Facility – 14,040 sf – Non-Sprinkled   

Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  

Construction Type:   Type 2B 

Occupant Loads:   11,340 sf Storage @ 300 = 38 occupants 

1,112 sf Business @ 100 sf/occupant = 12 occupants 

450 sf Assembly @ 15 sf/occupant = 30 occupants 

     Total Occupant Load = 80 occupants 

 

Building Limitations – Non-Sprinkled          

Construction Type:    2B Unprotected 

Maximum Height:    55’ / 3 stories 

Maximum Area / Floor:    17,500 sf 



Page 47www.raymondmaine.org

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 2 

Actual Area/Height:    14,040 sf / 30’ max / 1 story 

  

Fire Resistance Ratings 

Load Bearing Exterior Walls:   None 

Structural Frame:    None 

Load Bearing Floors:    None 

Roof Structure:     None 

Load Bearing Interior Walls:   None 

Fire Separation of Uses:    2 hours 

Exit Corridors:     1 hour 

Minimum Number of Exits:   2  

Maximum Dead End Corridor Length:  20’ 

Maximum Common Travel Path:  75’ 

Maximum Travel Distance:   200’ 

Minimum Corridor Width:   44”/36” (if less than 50 occ.) 

 

Fire Alarm System:    Not Required 

Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required  

Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required 

Exit Lighting     Required 

Emergency Lighting    Required 

 

Building Live Loads 

Office:      50 psf 

Corridors:     80 psf 

Storage:     125 psf @ light; 250 psf @ heavy 

 

Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 

Business        B      C  

Storage         C      C 

 

 

MUBEC (Maine Uniform Building Energy Code) MINIMUM INSULATION VALUES 

Per 2021 IECC; Table C402.1.3, C402.1.4 & C402.4 

 

ZONE 6A   R-VALUE U-FACTOR SHGC 

 

Roof (above deck)  30.0 ci  0.032  NA 

Exterior Wall   13+14 ci 0.050  NA 

Mass Wall    16.7 ci  0.080  NA 

(above Grade) 

Slab (24” band)   20.0  F-0.051  NA 

Heated Slab (36” band)  15.0  F-0.62  NA 

Frost Wall   10 ci  0.092  NA 

Doors – Swinging  -  0.37  NA  

Doors – Overhead  -  0.31  NA 

Windows   -  0.34  0.38-0.46 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 48 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 3 

 

 

 

2015 Maine State Plumbing Code/UPC – PER IBC OCCUPANTS LOADS 

 

Occupancy Classification: Storage 

Occupants:   80 @ Storage 

 

 

FIXTURES  TOILETS URINALS  LAVS  SHOWERS 

 

40 Men   1-100  1  0  1-200 1  0   

 

40 Women  1-100 1  0  1-200 1  0 

             

Total Required Fixtures  2  0   2  0 

 

1 Service Sink required. 

1 Drinking Fountain or Water Dispenser required. 

 

 
 

 

End of Analysis 



Page 49www.raymondmaine.org

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 1 

 
CODE ANALYSIS - EXISTING COLD STORAGE BUILDING 

 
NFPA 101 Life Safety Code - 2021 Edition   
 
Building Classification:   Existing Public Works Cold Storage Building – 4,800 sf  
Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  
Construction Type:   Type V (000) 
Occupant Loads:   4,800 sf Storage @ MP = 5 occupants 
     Total Occupant Load = 5 occupants 
Separation of Use Rating:  2 hours (NA) 
Janitor, Mech, Stor Rating:  1 hour (NA) 
Minimum Headroom:   7’-6” at occupied areas 
 
Building Uses / Non-Sprinkled   Storage      
 
Max. Allowable Travel Distance:  200’     
Max. Allowable Common Path:   50’     
Max. Dead End Corridor Length:  50’     
Minimum Egress Corridor Width:  44”/36” (if less than 50 occ.) 
Minimum Number of Required Exits  2     
Minimum Horz Egress Enclosure rating:  none    
Minimum Separation of exits:   0.5 diagonal’    
Minimum Egress Door Width:   36”     
 
Exit Lighting:     Required    
Emergency Lighting:    Required    
Fire Alarm System:    Not Required    
Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required    
Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required   
Exit Devices/Panic Hardware   Not Required (less than 50 occ.)  
Smoke Detection/Alarm System   Required    
 
Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 
Storage          A      B     

 
 
2015 International Building Code 
 
Building Classification:   Existing Public Works Cold Storage Building – 4,800 sf  
Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  
Construction Type:   Type 5B 
Occupant Loads:   4,800 sf Storage @ 300 = 16 occupants 
     Total Occupant Load = 16 occupants 
 
Building Limitations – Non-Sprinkled        
Construction Type:    5B Unprotected 
Maximum Height:    40’ / 1 story 
Maximum Area / Floor:    9,000 sf 
Actual Area/Height:    4,800 sf / 32’ max / 1 story 

  
Fire Resistance Ratings 
Load Bearing Exterior Walls:   None 
Structural Frame:    None 
Load Bearing Floors:    None 



Page 50 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 2 

Roof Structure:     None 
Load Bearing Interior Walls:   None 
Fire Separation of Uses:    2 hours (NA) 
Exit Corridors:     1 hour (NA) 
Minimum Number of Exits:   2  
Maximum Dead End Corridor Length:  20’ 
Maximum Common Travel Path:  75’ 
Maximum Travel Distance:   200’ 
Minimum Corridor Width:   44”/36” (if less than 50 occ.) 
 
Fire Alarm System:    Not Required 
Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required  
Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required 
Exit Lighting     Required 
Emergency Lighting    Required 
 
Building Live Loads 
Storage:     125 psf @ light; 250 psf @ heavy 
 
Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 
Storage         C      C 

 
 
 
 

End of Analysis 



Page 51www.raymondmaine.org

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 1 

 

CODE ANALYSIS – EXISTING OFFICE TRAILER 

 

NFPA 101 Life Safety Code - 2021 Edition   

 

Building Classification:   Existing Public Works Facility Office Trailer – 840 sf gross 

Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  

Construction Type:   Type V (000) 

Occupant Loads:   840 sf Business @ 150 sf/occupant = 6 occupants 

     Total Occupant Load = 6 occupants 

Separation of Use Rating:  2 hours (NA) 

Janitor, Mech, Stor Rating:  1 hour (NA) 

Minimum Headroom:   7’-6” at occupied areas 

 

Building Uses / Non-Sprinkled   Business        

  

Max. Allowable Travel Distance:  200’     

Max. Allowable Common Path:   75’ 

Max. Dead End Corridor Length:  20’  

Minimum Egress Corridor Width:  44”/36” (if less than 50 occ.) 

Minimum Number of Required Exits  2    

Minimum Horz Egress Enclosure rating:  none     

Minimum Separation of exits:   0.5 diagonal distance    

Minimum Egress Door Width:   36”     

 

Exit Lighting:     Required   

Emergency Lighting:    Required    

Fire Alarm System:    Not Required    

Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required    

Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required   

Exit Devices/Panic Hardware   Not Required – (less than 50 occ.)    

Smoke Detection/Alarm System   Required   

 

Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 

Business/Assembly        A      B      

 

 

2015 International Building Code 

 

Building Classification:   Existing Public Works Facility Office Trailer– 840 sf  gross 

Hazard Classification:   Ordinary Hazard  

Construction Type:   Type 5B 

Occupant Loads:   840 sf Business @ 100 sf/occupant = 9 occupants 

     Total Occupant Load = 9 occupants 

 

Building Limitations – Non-Sprinkled          

Construction Type:    5B Unprotected 

Maximum Height:    40’ / 2 stories 

Maximum Area / Floor:    9,000 sf 

Actual Area/Height:    840 sf / 16’ max / 1 story 

  

Fire Resistance Ratings 

Load Bearing Exterior Walls:   None 

Structural Frame:    None 

Load Bearing Floors:    None 



Page 52 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 2 

Roof Structure:     None 

Load Bearing Interior Walls:   None 

Fire Separation of Uses:    2 hours (NA) 

Exit Corridors:     1 hour 

Minimum Number of Exits:   2  

Maximum Dead End Corridor Length:  20’ 

Maximum Common Travel Path:  75’ 

Maximum Travel Distance:   200’ 

Minimum Corridor Width:   44”/36” (if less than 50 occ.) 

 

Fire Alarm System:    Not Required 

Fire Sprinkler System:    Not Required  

Portable Fire Extinguishers:   Required 

Exit Lighting     Required 

Emergency Lighting    Required 

 

Building Live Loads 

Office:      50 psf 

Corridors:     80 psf 

 

Finishes Class (Minimum)   Corridors Rooms 

Business        B      C  

 

MUBEC (Maine Uniform Building Energy Code) MINIMUM INSULATION VALUES 

Per 2021 IECC; Table C402.1.3, C402.1.4 & C402.4 

 

ZONE 6A   R-VALUE U-FACTOR SHGC 

 

Roof (above deck)  30.0 ci  0.032  NA 

Exterior Wall   13+14 ci 0.050  NA 

Mass Wall    16.7 ci  0.080  NA 

(above Grade) 

Slab (24” band)   20.0  F-0.051  NA 

Heated Slab (36” band)  15.0  F-0.62  NA 

Frost Wall   10 ci  0.092  NA 

Doors – Swinging  -  0.37  NA  

Doors – Overhead  -  0.31  NA 

Windows   -  0.34  0.38-0.46 

 

2015 Maine State Plumbing Code/UPC – PER IBC OCCUPANTS LOADS 

 

Occupancy Classification: Business 

Occupants:   9  

 

 

FIXTURES  TOILETS URINALS  LAVS  SHOWERS 

 

5 Men   1-50  1 1-100 0  1-75 1  0   

 

4 Women  1-15 1  0  1-50 1  0 

             

Total Required Fixtures  2  0   2  0 

 

1 Service Sink required. 

1 Drinking Fountain or Water Dispenser required. 









Page 56www.raymondmaine.org

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 1 

RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 
NEW MAINTENANCE FACILITY SPACE NEEDS ANALYSIS 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
Function   Size   Area (SF)   
PW Director   12 x 18   216 
Admin    8 x 10   80 
Restroom   7 x 8   56 
Break Room   18 x 28   504 
Custodial   6 x 6   36 
Men’s Lockers/Bath  8 x 32   256 
Women’s Lockers/Bath 8 x 14   112 
Circulation      240    
Subtotal      1,500      
  
WORK BAYS     
Function   Size   Area (SF)   
Bulk Fluids Room  12 x 16   192 
Parts Room   12 x 16   192 
Secured Tools Room  6 x 6   36 
Storage   8 x 12   96 
I.T.    6 x 6   36 
Emergency Wash  2 x 6   12 
Restroom   7 x 8   56 
Mechanic Oice  10 x 12   120 
Bay 1- Mechanic  22 x 45   990 
Bay 2- Mechanic  22 x 45   990 
Bay 3- Apparatus Lift  22 x 45   990 
Bay 4- Apparatus  22 x 45   990 
Circulation      460 
Safety Lane   8 x 90   720    
Subtotal      5,880 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 57www.raymondmaine.org

GHA RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS 2 

APPARATUS STORAGE BAYS 
Function   Size   Area (SF)   
Bay 5    22 x 45   990 
Bay 6    22 x 45   990 
Bay 7    22 x 45   990 
Bay 8    22 x 45   990    
Subtotal      3,960 
 
APPARATUS WASH BAY 
Function   Size   Area (SF)   
Wash Bay   30 x 60   1,800 
Wash Bay Equipment 8 x 12   96 
Water     8 x 10   80 
Waste Oil Tanks  6 x 8   48 
General Storage  12 x 12   144 
Mezzanine   30 x 30   900 
Mechanical/Electrical 16 x 20 (+)  532    
Subtotal      3,600   
 
GRAND TOTAL      14,940 SF GROSS AREA  



Page 58 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   www.allied-eng.com 

TOWN OF RAYMOND PUBLIC WORKS FACILITIES – EXISTING CONDITIONS ASSESSMENT 
 
Summary 
 
This report is issued to document our conditions assessment report for the mechanical, electrical, plumbing, 
structural/roofing, and fire protection (MEPSFP) systems serving the existing Public Works facilities for the Town 
of Raymond, Maine. Facilities included in the assessment include the existing Public Works Garage and the existing 
portable Administrative Office Trailer.  
 
The scope for this report includes an assessment of the existing Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Structural/Roofing, and Fire Protection systems within each facility and documents the condition, capacity, and code 
compliance for the systems based upon current facility usage.  
 
Services included in conducting this assessment are as follows:  

 
1. Meet with designated representatives of the facility to gain an understanding of the use and environmental 

requirements of each functional space as well as current programming and systemic shortfalls associated with 
each facility based upon current occupancy. 

2. Conduct field visits to assess the configuration and condition of existing systems, analyze existing building 
design documentation, become familiar with prior renovations and functional space changes throughout the 
facility, and interview occupants within each of the spaces to gain an understanding as to the adequacy of the 
current systems to maintain acceptable conditions based upon use and occupancy. 

3. Collaboration with Sebago Technics and Grant Hays Architects to understand the potential for programming 
changes/expansion and/or occupancy changes. 

 
The assessment incorporates the following items: 

 
1. Visual assessment of systems condition and operation 
2. Interview of designated facility personnel to gather information relative to space comfort, systems efficiency, 

maintainability, and other relevant information. 
3. Review of system design documentation to analyze the ability for systems to meet current code requirements 

and industry standards for occupant comfort, indoor air quality, and efficiency of operations. 
 
MUBEC, Maine’s adopted Building and Energy Code although currently based upon the 2015 International Building 
Code, is scheduled to be updated in the Spring of 2024. As such, codes cited herein shall be as referenced in the 
upcoming updates to the MUBEC code.  
 
 
Facility Overview 
 
Public Works Garage 
 
The existing Public Works Garage is located at 387 Webbs Mills Road. It comprises four Work Bays, a restroom, and 
tool room with two small equipment mezzanines. 
 
The facility is connected to the existing Fire Station, was originally constructed as a two bay facility in approximately 
1980, and received a two bay addition in approximately 1989. 
 
The facility comprises approximately 4,000 sf. 



Page 59www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
Administrative Building 
 
The Administrative Building is located at 170 Plains Road. It is a single story portable Office Trailer originally used 
for Military housing and re-purposed by the Town of Raymond for Administrative functions for the Public Works 
Department. 
 
The facility houses a large Conference/Meeting Room, Break Room, Locker Room, and Restroom areas. 
 
The facility comprises approximately 840 sf. 
 
Structural 
 
Applicable Codes: 
 
International Building Code – 2015 
American Society of Civil Engineers Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and other Structures -2010 
 
 
Public Works Garage: 
 
Public Works Garage at 387 Webbs Mills Road consists of three different construction vintages. An original Fire 
Station reportedly built in the late 1970’s, a Bus Garage portion of the Public Works Garage reportedly constructed in 
the early 1980’s as a two-bay addition to the original Fire Station, and a final portion of the existing facility currently 
housing fire trucks added in 1989 as a two-bay addition to the Bus Garage. The structural scope here is a review of 
the structural condition and current building code compliance of the Bus Garage addition and the two-bay space 
currently housing fire trucks referred to here as the Fire Truck addition. The original Fire Station is not part of the 
current review.  
 
A drawing was available from 1989 for the Fire Truck addition showing some structural/framing data including some 
design load information. No structural/framing drawing data was available for the Bus Garage addition. 
 
Fire Truck Addition 
 
Drawing from 1989 by Dearborn/Whited Architects & Engineers shows framing for Fire Truck Addition to consist of 
pre-fabricated wood roof trusses spaced at 24” on center with 6:12 roof slope to centered ridge line. Insulation is 
located at the bottom chord of roof trusses. Roof trusses span about 51’ +/- and are supported on 16’ +/- tall perimeter 
12” CMU walls. CMU walls are shown to have horizontal joint reinforcing in mortar joints at 16” on center for full 
wall height, but not to have any vertical reinforcing steel. Drawing indicates that small CMU segments along front 
wall between two existing 14’ wide overhead doors are to be grouted solid, and indicate 12” deep steel beam headers 
supporting wood trusses over tops of two 14’ wide overhead doors.  There is a small wood-framed mezzanine space 
in one corner of the Fire Truck addition. Part of the mezzanine consists of a 6” thick concrete slab over an oil tank 
enclosure. Remaining portion of mezzanine consists of 2X10 @ 16” on center framing supported on interior wood 
walls and by ledger to inside face of portion of perimeter 12” CMU wall.  
 
The wood roof trusses were observed from an access hatch above the mezzanine area. No signs of distress, damage, 
or overload conditions were observed for the existing wood roof trusses. 
 
The existing 12” CMU perimeter walls are in decent condition, given the age and exposure conditions for the building. 
There are a number of areas of the CMU wall with some signs of thermal cracking along mortar joints, and some signs 



Page 60 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

of damage along low areas of walls from snow accumulation and freeze/thaw action over repeated winters.  The small 
CMU segments between existing overhead doors along the front wall are protected from damage with bollards. 
 
Concrete slab-on-grade surface appears to be free of major signs of cracking due to soil settlement/upheaval, or 
overload from vehicle traffic. 
 
Visible portions of tops of perimeter concrete foundation walls show similar signs of damage as observed for the CMU 
walls from snow accumulations and freeze/thaw action over repeated winters. 
 
Mezzanine framing appears to be in good condition.   
 
A portion of rear perimeter 12” CMU wall at the existing oil tank room was removed and replaced with 8” CMU up 
to perhaps 8’above slab level at some point in time when the current oil tank was installed 
 
Asphalt roof shingles are reportedly 15 years old. They appear to be in poor condition. 
 
Building code requirements have changed for applicable load provisions since the existing Public Works Garage areas 
were constructed. The current 2015 International Building Code requires that buildings be able to withstand specified 
snow, wind, earthquake and other load conditions that vary by location, and for series of other parameters.  
 
The current building code requires the roof framing for the Raymond Public Works Garage be able to support a 
uniform roof snow load of 62 +/- pounds per square foot plus the weight of all framing/roofing/suspended elements, 
and also an unbalanced roof snow load condition with greater than the uniform roof snow load value accumulating for 
a distance close to the roof ridge representing snow blowing across one side of ridge to opposite side of ridge. The 
1989 drawing indicates that the existing wood roof trusses were to be designed for a 60 pounds per square foot snow 
load which compares well to current requirement of 62 pounds per square foot.  There is no mention on the existing 
drawing on unbalanced roof snow loading condition. The new unbalanced roof snow load condition will most likely 
generate localized overstress levels in truss top chord members located to either side of roof ridge. 
 
The building code also requires building framing to be able to resist lateral loads generated from wind speeds up to 
115 miles per hour, and lateral loads from code-specified earthquakes. The major issues for the existing building for 
lateral loads are summarized below. 
 
-Inadequate lateral support at roof eave level for top of 12” perimeter CMU walls along gable endwall for lateral loads 
applied perpendicular to gable endwall surface. 
 
-Inadequate anchorage of roof truss ends to tops of 12” perimeter CMU walls for uplift loads on roof surface and to 
provide support for lateral loads on CMU sidewalls applied perpendicular to front and back walls. 
 
-Inadequate shear wall capacity along front perimeter 12” CMU wall given almost entire front wall is made of 
overhead door openings for lateral loads applied perpendicular to gable endwall surface. 
 
 
-Inadequate ability for perimeter 12” CMU walls to span vertically from foundation level to roof level for lateral loads 
applied perpendicular to CMU walls. Ability of existing CMU walls to span vertically from foundation to roof levels 
at perimeter Oil Tank Room compromised by replacement of original 12” CMU with 8” CMU up to 8’ +/- above slab 
level when current oil tank was installed. 
 
-Inadequate load capacity of 24” +/- wide portion of 12” CMU perimeter wall along front wall between the two 14’ 
wide overhead doors to support gravity loads from snow loads on roof surface, and winds loads applied perpendicular 
to face of CMU front wall. 



Page 61www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
The existing mezzanine railing does not meet building code lateral loading requirements. We recommend that the 
mezzanine floor be rated and posted for allowable load capacity. 
 
The existing concrete slab-on-grade appears free from major cracking due to load from vehicle travel across the slab 
surface. The thickness of the existing concrete slab in not known. The trend in fire equipment is that new trucks are 
often much heavier than older trucks. If any new trucks are planned it is recommended that the existing slab thickness 
be determined and reviewed for any new loads. 
 
Bus Garage Addition 
 
No framing drawings were available for the Bus Garage addition. Review was limited to existing framing components 
that were visible at the time of the site visit. Perimeter walls were 16’ +/- tall 12” CMU like for the Fire Truck addition. 
It is not known if the CMU walls contain any horizontal or vertical reinforcing but given the age of the addition it is 
most likely that the existing CMU walls are unreinforced. The front wall contains the same small 2’ +/- segment of 
CMU between two 14’ +/- overhead doors with other short 3’ +/- segments of CMU wall extending from outboard 
overhead door jambs to the building corners.  It is assumed here that the roof framing for Bus Garage addition consists 
of pre-fabricated wood roof trusses, most likely spaced at 24” on center, like for the Fire Truck addition. Trusses have 
6:12 roof slope to centered ridge line. Insulation is most likely located at the bottom chord of roof trusses. Roof trusses 
span about 51’ +/- and are supported on the perimeter 12” CMU walls, and most likely on steel beam headers over the 
two 14’ +/- overhead doors along the front wall. There is a small wood-framed mezzanine space in one corner of the 
Bus Garage addition. Most of the mezzanine has a hard ceiling so framing was not visible.  
 
No observations were made on condition of wood roof trusses as there was no access to the roof framing during the 
site visit. 
 
The existing 12” CMU perimeter walls are in decent condition, given the age and exposure conditions for the building. 
There are a number of areas of the CMU wall with some signs of thermal cracking along mortar joints, and some signs 
of damage along low areas of walls from snow accumulation and freeze/thaw action over repeated winters.  The small 
CMU segments between existing overhead doors along the front wall are not protected from damage with bollards. 
 
Concrete slab-on-grade surface appears to be free of major signs of cracking due to soil settlement/upheaval, or 
overload from vehicle traffic. 
 
Visible portions of tops of perimeter concrete foundation walls show similar signs of damage as observed for the CMU 
walls from snow accumulations and freeze/thaw action over repeated winters. 
 
No observations were made on condition of mezzanine framing as most of framing was not visible during site visit.  
 
Asphalt roof shingles are reportedly 15 years old. They appear to be in poor condition. 
 
Building code requirements have changed for applicable load provisions since the existing Public Works Garage areas 
were constructed. The current 2015 International Building Code requires that buildings be able to withstand specified 
snow, wind, earthquake and other load conditions that vary by location, and for series of other parameters.  
 
The current building code requires the roof framing for the Raymond Public Works Garage be able to support a 
uniform roof snow load of 62 +/- pounds per square foot plus the weight of all framing/roofing/suspended elements, 
and also an unbalanced roof snow load condition with greater than the uniform roof snow load value accumulating for 
a distance close to the roof ridge representing snow blowing across one side of ridge to opposite side of ridge. At the 
time of the Bus Garage addition in the early 1980’s the most likely building code used for Raymond was the 1981 
edition of the BOCA Building Code. A review of the provisions of the 1981 BOCA code shows that the roof trusses 



Page 62 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

were most likely designed for as much as a uniform roof snow load of 56 pounds per square foot and an unbalanced 
roof snow load condition with 70 pounds per square foot over ½ of the roof truss span from ridge down to eave. The 
56 pounds per square foot uniform design load compares reasonably well to current 62 pounds per square foot uniform 
snow load requirement. The new unbalanced roof snow load condition will most likely generate localized overstress 
levels in truss top chord members located to either side of roof ridge. 
 
The building code also requires building framing to be able to resist lateral loads generated from wind speeds up to 
115 miles per hour, and lateral loads from code-specified earthquakes. Assuming that the existing CMU walls have 
no vertical reinforcing the major issues for the existing building are the same as those presented for the Fire Truck 
addition. 
 
We recommend that the mezzanine floor should be rated and posted for allowable load capacity. 
 
The existing concrete slab-on-grade appears free from major cracking due to load from vehicle travel across the slab 
surface. Reportedly the slab is 6” thick, at least in the area of an installed lift. If any new trucks are planned it is 
recommended that the existing slab thickness be verified and reviewed for any new loads. 
 
Summary Public Works Building 
 
Given the age and type of usage of the building the existing Public Works facility appears to be in decent condition 
with no visible major signs of distress, deterioration and/or significant overload. There are a number of deficiencies 
as noted relative to current building code load provisions. The building should not be expected to respond well if ever 
subjected to the worst-case load provisions required to meet the current building code. Especially those related to 
lateral loads generated by code-specified wind load and earthquake load events. 
 
Administrative Building: 
 
The Administrative Building is located at 170 Plains Road. It is a single-story portable Office Trailer originally used 
for Military housing, and re-purposed by the Town of Raymond for Administrative functions for the Public Works 
Department. The structural scope here is a review of the structural condition and current building code compliance of 
the Administrative Building. 
 
The existing building has wood framed roof, walls and floors. Wood roof framing was observed to be 2X8’s @ 24” 
on center spanning 13’ +/- across the entire short direction of the building footprint. Walls are 2X4’s. Existing base 
skirting made access/viewing of the floor framing, and support framing/foundations below the floor framing, not 
possible. Reportedly the building sits on perimeter steel beams with the beams bearing on CMU blocks directly on the 
ground surface without any concrete foundation elements, or hard tie-offs to the ground surface. 
 
The visible framing components appear to be in good condition, free of any signs of damage, distress or overload 
conditions. 
 
The building code requires roof framing support uniform roof snow load of 56 pounds per square foot plus weight of 
all framing/roofing elements.  The existing 2X8 roof framing is not adequate to support the code-specified uniform 
roof snow loads.  
 
The building code requires building framing to be able to resist loads generated from wind speeds up to 115 miles per 
hour. Building is not anchored down so existing conditions will not meet current building code lateral load 
requirements. 
 
 



Page 63www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

Sprinkler 
 
Codes, Standards and Authorities Having Jurisdiction: 
 
NFPA 1, Fire Code with amendments 
NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems 
NFPA 101, Life Safety Code 
NFPA 1225 Standard for Emergency Center Communications 
NFPA 75 Standard for Fire Protection 
State of Maine Fire Marshal ’s Office 
Town of Raymond Fire Department 
Owner’s Insurance Agent 
 
 
 
Public Works Garage 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
The Public Works Garage does not contain a system of automatic sprinkler protection. 
 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 
Based upon current NFPA 13 and IBC requirements, it is not anticipated that a sprinkler system is required for this 
facility. 
 
Administrative Building 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
The Administrative Building does not contain a system of automatic sprinkler protection. 
 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 
Based upon current NFPA 13 and IBC requirements, it is not anticipated that a sprinkler system is required for this 
facility. 
 
 
Plumbing 
 
Applicable Codes: 
 
ASHRAE Standard 90.1 – 2019 
IECC - 2021 
Maine Internal Plumbing Code – UPC 2021 
 
 



Page 64 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
Public Works Garage 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
The Public Works Garage shares an on-site well with the adjacent Fire Station. The well incorporates a submersible 
pump which delivers water to the Fire Station to a hydro-pneumatic pressure tank with control switch.  
 
From the entrance in the Fire Station, a ¾” diameter branch line is extended into the Public Works Garage for service 
throughout. 
 
Domestic hot water for the PW Garage is provided by a storage type electric water heater, sized at 20 gallons, and 
located on the mezzanine above the restroom. 
 
Domestic hot and cold water piping is distributed to fixtures and hose bibs within the facility using a combination of 
copper piping with soldered joints, PEX tubing, and schedule 40 PVC with solvent cemented joints. 
 
Plumbing fixtures consist o a floor mounted, flush tank style water closet, vanity style lavatory with two handle faucet, 
and counter mounted composite utility sink with two handle faucet. 
 

 

 
 
Compressed air for the facility is provided by a 2-stage reciprocating air compressor sized at 5 hp with a vertical 80 
gallon receiver. Compressed air is distributed throughout the work bays to overhead hose reels and wall mounted 
outlets via schedule 40 black iron pipe with threaded fittings. 
 
 



Page 65www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
 
Sanitary sewer for the facility is served by an on-site septic system. The above grade piping, where accessible appears 
to be constructed of schedule 40 PVC piping with solvent cemented joints. 
 
One of the work bays within the original section of the facility contains a trench drain which has been filled with 
concrete and capped. 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 

- It is reported that the domestic water is high in sulfur. Occupants of the facility are furnished bottle water for 
drinking. 

- The existing plumbing fixtures throughout appear to be original to the facility, are at the end of their published 
useful service lives and showing signs of dilapidation. 

- The plumbing fixtures do not comply with ADA requirements for accessibility. 
- Hot and cold water piping is uninsulated throughout and not in compliance with current energy requirements. 
- The air compressor for the facility was installed in approximately 2015 and is in good overall condition, of 

adequate size for the current facility requirements. 
- The domestic water heater appears to be in good overall condition and sized appropriately for the current use. 

 
Administrative Building 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
Domestic water service for this facility is provided by an on-site well with a submersible pump. The water from the 
well enters the Administrative Building as a ¾” service to a hydro-pneumatic tank with a pressure switch for pump 
control. 
 



Page 66 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

  

 
Domestic hot water is generated through the use of a storage type, 50 gallon electric water heater manufactured by 

Whirlpool.  
 
Domestic hot and cold water piping throughout is primarily constructed of PEX tubing. 
 
Sanitary sewer piping is concealed throughout and not accessible for viewing. 
 
Plumbing fixtures consist of white vitrous china, wall mounted lavatories with single lever handles, floor mounted 
flush tank style water closets, wall mounted flush valve urinals, stainless steel break room sink with two handle faucet 
and pull out spray, and fiberglass shower enclosures with single hand mixing valves. 



Page 67www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
 
An exterior hose bib with hot and cold water service is used for washing vehicles. 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 

- Flow and capacity for the on-site well is reported to be more than adequate to meet the needs of the facility. 
In fact, on the date of the visit, the hydrostatic pressure of the well was observed to be pushing water out of 
the well head onto grade. 

- The existing plumbing fixtures throughout are at the end of their published useful service lives and showing 
signs of dilapidation. Many fixtures have actually been removed with sanitary and domestic water branches 
capped at the mains. 

- The plumbing fixtures do not comply with ADA requirements for accessibility. 
- Hot and cold water piping is uninsulated throughout and not in compliance with current energy requirements. 
- The domestic water heater appears to be in good overall condition and sized appropriately for the current use. 



Page 68 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

Mechanical 
 
Applicable Codes: 
 
Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC) consists of the following codes:   

 

- IBC, International Building Code – 2021 
- IMC, International Mechanical Code – 2021 
- ASHRAE Standard 62.1 – 2019 
- ASHRAE Standard 90.1 – 2019 
- IECC, International Energy Conservation Code, 2021 
- Maine Internal Plumbing Code – UPC 2021 
- NFPA 1, Fire Code with amendments 
- NFPA 54, National Fuel Gas Code 
- NFPA 90A, Stand for the Installation of Air-Conditioning and Ventilating Systems 
- NFPA 101, Life Safety Code 

 
Public Works Garage 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
Heating for the original two Work Bays is provided by a York, #2 fuel fired hot air furnace located in the Mechanical 
Room. The furnace is sized at 190,000 BTU/hr and conveys hot air to the Work Bays via a ducted supply and return 
system and is controlled by a Honeywell temperature sensor located in the Work Bay. 
 

 

 
 
Heating for the 1989 Work Bay addition is provided by a waste oil furnace suspended from the ceiling structure. This 
furnace, like the York unit, is controlled through the use of a Honeywell thermostat located in the Work Bay. 



Page 69www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
#2 fuel for the original bays is stored in a 330 gallon above ground tank located in the Mechanical Room. 

 
 
Waste oil for the 1989 addition is deposited into a 55 gallon storage tank located in one of the Work Bays and 
transferred to a 500 gallon above-ground storage tank located in a tank room at te end of one of the Work Bays. 
 

  

 
 
There is no ventilation in the original section of the building except for an inline exhaust fan serving the restroom 
which is operated by a wall switch and ducted to a roof jack at the roof above. 
 
Ventilation for the 1989 addition consists of a sidewall exhaust fan which is manually energized “as needed”. 



Page 70 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
Originally, a utility set style exhaust fan, located at the mezzanine above the fuel tank room, was used to ventilated 
the tank room. However, the fan has since been disconnected from the ductwork and no longer functions. 
 
There is no capture exhaust for vehicle exhaust. 
 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 

- As noted above, the original section of the facility has no mechanical ventilation. Based upon reports that 
vehicles, from time to time, are run within the space during maintenance procedures, a system for both 
general ventilation and vehicle exhaust ventilation is required by current code requirements. 

- Although the added Work Bays incorporate an exhaust fan for ventilation, the fan is manually energized and 
has no source of makeup air. Reportedly, when the fan is energized, the lack of makeup air causes so much 
negative pressure in the building that the furnaces will not operate. 

- Based upon the reported maintenance activities within the added Work Bays, like the original Work Bays, 
an automated or continuously operating general ventilation system is required to serve the space. 
Additionally, a vehicle exhaust system is required to meet current code requirements. 

- The tank room should be ventilated per International Mechanical Code requirements. 
 
Administrative Building 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
Heat for the Administrative Building is provided by two wall mounted Rinnai LP gas fired heaters, each sized at 
36,500 BTU/hr. LP gas to serve the heaters is provided by two 100 lb containers located at the West side of the facility. 
 

  
 
There is no mechanical cooling in the Administrative Building. Originally the portable trailer utilized two package 
terminal heating/cooling units, one at each end wall to provide heating and cooling throughout. However, both units 
have been taken out of service and are no longer functional. 
 



Page 71www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 
 
There is no supply air ventilation within the facility. 
 
Bathroom/Shower Room/Locker Room exhaust is provided by three in line fans mounted in the ceiling and controlled 
from a single wall switch at the South end of the facility. 
 

 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 

- As noted above, there is currently no supply air ventilation within the facility. A system of ventilation I 
required by current International Mechanical Code. 

- The Rinnai heaters are currently controlled by single, stand-alone thermostats. They do not have the capacity 
for occupied/unoccupied programming as required by current energy standards. 

 



Page 72 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

 

 
Electrical 
 
Applicable Codes: 
 
Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC) consists of the following codes:   

 

- IBC, International Building Code – 2021 
- IECC, International Energy Conservation Code, 2021 
- NEC 2023 
- NFPA 72, Fire Alarm and Signaling Systems 
- NFPA 101, Life Safety Code 

 
Public Works Garage 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
The electrical service to the building is shared with the adjacent fire department building. The power is supplied by a 
single phase 200 Amp, 120/240-volt pole mounted CMP 25 kVA utility transformer (exact size TBC) located on a 
pole on the opposite side of Webbs Mills Road. The secondary lines are run overhead from the utility pole to the 
building. 
 
The electrical service then runs from a service mast down the outside of the building through a utility meter then into 
the 200 Amp main panel mounted to the exterior wall within the garage bay. The panel is wired through the service 
entrance rated 200 Amp automatic transfer switch (ATS). The panel serving the fire department building (located in 
their portion of the building; rating unknown) along with a 100A sub panel in the last work bay area are both also 
served by this ATS. 
 
The building is served by a stand-by power emergency generator which runs off propane fuel. The unit has recently 
been replaced/installed. The generator capacity is 48 kW/48 kVA/200Amp output and back-ups the entire 200 Amp 
service to the combined DPW and FD building. The generator provides emergency power to the ATS unit described 
above. 
 
The emergency egress lighting utilizes AC powered devices with integral DC back up power. The illuminated exit 
signs utilize mostly combo sign with dual light heads units and are only located at one egress door and two at the work 
bay adjoining door. The rear egress door is missing an illuminated exit sign. There isn’t any exterior emergency egress 
lighting at the egress doors. 
 
The interior lighting consists of legacy linear T8 lamped fluorescent fixtures throughout. Lighting control utilizes 
simple manual switching only. 
 
Work bench power is split across two separate work benches; several power strips are being utilized. 
 
Mechanic floor mounted equipment power relies primarily on receptacles mounted along the perimeter walls. There 
were no power cord reel drops in the work bays. The receptacles that exist (welding and duplex) appeared to be wired 
properly form the op and were mounted a the required 48” AFF. 
 



Page 73www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

Fire alarm system initiation devices; one smoke detector in each work bay building section, no manual pull stations 
were observed  
 
Fire alarm system indication devices; one ceiling mounted horn/strobe device in each work bay building section. 
 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 

- The building is currently supplied with a single-phase electrical service; however, it could benefit from 
having a three-phase electrical service which is typical of commercial applications like this one. The three-
phase electrical service allows for more options when selecting mechanic tool equipment or HVAC and 
plumbing equipment with motor loads greater than 5 HP. It also allows for improved load balancing across 
the phases which will help improve the efficiency of the power consumption in the building. 

- The existing 200 Amp single phase electrical service size will not be capable of supporting the existing loads 
plus loads associated with the required HVAC upgrades, proposed mechanic equipment procurement loads 
or allow for future growth of programs needs in the building. This facility should consider a 225 Amp 3 phase 
or 400 Amp single phase service (depending on the proposed HVAC loads, new and future program needs). 
The generator may need to be replaced with larger unit (single or three phase) and sized based on running a 
load starting analysis using calculation software.  

- The existing 200 Amp, single phase, electrical service and 48 kW stand-by power single phase generator may 
be sufficient for the facility if the entire facility was left for the fire department to expand into. It would be 
valuable to review their needs and provide a service and generator capacity analysis. 

- The lighting should be updated with new linear LED light fixtures; higher illumination output, lower power 
consumption and less maintenance. The existing light fixture layout does not provide sufficient illumination 
levels nor does it have consistent illumination distribution throughout the space. This is especially true in the 
front entry portion of the work bays where the garage doors are raised when opened; fixtures should be placed 
in this location so that when the bay doors are closed there is sufficient lighting in that portion of the work 
bay. 

- Wall and ceiling mounted light fixtures should be utilized to help with supplemental lighting when the 
overhead lighting is shadowed by the vehicle being repaired. The lighting control should utilize both an 
automatic (vacancy and occupancy sensor configurations) and a manual switching configuration. Automatic 
switching could be utilized for safe walk-in entry by controlling select fixtures. Manual switching, zoned 
better for wall or overhead lighting in each work bay section to allow for additional light in certain areas 
when needed.  

- Power cord reels should be added at the front and rear of each work bay so to minimize the tripping hazard 
of power cords on the floor running from wall mounted receptacle. 

- Provide additional duplex receptacles at work benches and set up a shelf / charging system area for a higher 
density of duplex receptacle to support all the battery chargers for tools and radios being used in these types 
of facilities. Weatherproof in-use type covers should be utilized for receptacles that may be subject to fluid 
splashing under normal conditions (e.g. oil bath equipment)  

- Emergency egress lighting (dual head wall packs) should be added to the side walls of each work bay in order 
to provide a safe egress path when repair vehicles are in the work bays. Emergency egress lighting is required 
above the exterior of each egress door and should be added to this facility. Provide illuminated exit sign at 
each egress door from each work bay or the building. 

- Fire alarm system and devices; provide manual pull station at each egress door, provide more smoke detectors 
in each work bay (high ceilings change/lessen the detector coverage capability) unless building is provided 
with full fire protection sprinkler coverage, provide additional strobe only devices at each egress door (ceiling 
mounted unit has limited visibility due to repair vehicles), provide strobe only device and a smoke detector 
in the locker/bath room, ensure a smoke detector and strobe only device are located in each storage room and 
provide a smoke detector above the location of each electrical distribution panel. 



Page 74 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

- The fuel tank and pump located adjacent o the building has an emergency power off (EPO) button mounted 
the exterior wall of the DPW building; it is not labeled as to what its purpose is and should be. 
 

 
Administrative Building 
 
Existing Systems: 
 
The electrical service to the site is shared between the trailer and the adjacent salt storage and cold storage buildings. 
The power to the site is supplied by a single phase 200 Amp, 120/240-volt pole mounted CMP 25 kVA utility 
transformer (exact size TBC) located on a customer utility pole in the entry drive to the site from Plains Road. The 
secondary lines are run overhead from the utility pole on Plains Road down the entry drive to a customer transformer 
pole then a customer service pole on site. 
 
The electrical service then runs from the service pole in two directions;  

1. first sub-service is a 200 Amp riser down the pole to a meter and 200 Amp main service circuit breaker 
which is routed underground from the pole to the exterior 200 Amp double throw service disconnect 
switch at the trailer. The double throw switch allows the trailer service to choose between utility power 
and plug-in generator power. 

2. second sub-service runs overhead to the cold storage shed and down a service mast at the storage shed 
to a meter and 100 Amp main service circuit breaker in an exterior mounted feed through MLO panel. 
The 100 Amp cold storage feed thru panel serves an underground 100 Amp feeder routed to a 100 Amp 
exterior mounted panel (with a 100 Amp main circuit breaker) at the salt shed. The cold storage and salt 
sheds are not supported by generator power. 

 
The trailer is served by a plug-in mobile stand-by power emergency generator which runs off diesel fuel. The unit is 
parked behind the trailer ready to be plugged into the exterior mounted 200 Amp double throw disconnect switch. The 
generator capacity is 40 kW/40 kVA/168Amp output and back-ups the entire 200 Amp service to the trailer. The 
generator provides emergency power to the ATS unit described above. 
 
The emergency egress lighting utilizes (2) AC powered devices with integral DC back up power. There are two 
illuminated exit signs and two emergency lighting dual head wall packs (one at each egress door). There isn’t any 
exterior emergency egress lighting at the egress doors. 
 
The interior lighting consists of legacy 2’x4’ T8 lamped fluorescent fixtures throughout. Lighting control utilizes 
simple manual switching only. 
 
Receptacle power exists in the provisional locations by the trailer manufacturer with some additions over the years. 
 
A Fire alarm system or stand-alone smoke detector devices are non-existent in this trailer.  
 
 
Issues/Discussion: 
 

- In general, this is a trailer, there is not much we would recommend as a valuable electrical upgrade to it. 
- The building is currently supplied with a single-phase electrical service; it would not benefit from a larger 

single-phase service or a three-phase electrical service. It’s load growth potential beyond its current electrical 
service is minimal.  

- The lighting should be updated with new linear LED light fixtures; higher illumination output, lower power 
consumption and less maintenance. 



Page 75www.raymondmaine.org

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
160 Veranda Street   T 207.221.2260 
 Portland, ME 04103          F 207.221.2266     
   Web: www.allied-eng.com 
             

- The lighting control should utilize automatic switching configuration (vacancy sensors; manual ON, auto 
OFF).  

- Set up a shelf / charging system area for a higher density of duplex receptacle to support all the battery 
chargers for IT equipment and radios being used by staff in this trailer.  

- Emergency egress lighting is required above the exterior of each egress door and should be added to this 
facility. 

- Provide a simple addressable fire alarm system; provide manual pull station at each egress door, provide 
horn/strobe devices at each egress door, ensure a smoke detector is located in each room and provide a smoke 
detector above the location of the electrical distribution panel. 

- Similar to the other existing location if a new DPW facility were placed here a three-phase electrical service 
should be considered for the reasons identified in the other facility assessment. 

- The existing 200 Amp single phase electrical service size will not be capable of supporting the existing loads 
plus loads associated with the required HVAC upgrades, proposed mechanic equipment procurement loads 
or allow for future growth of programs needs in a future DPW building. The new DPW single location facility 
(if provided in this location) should consider a 400 Amp 3 phase or 800 Amp single phase service (depending 
on the proposed HVAC loads, new and future program needs). The mobile generator may need to be replaced 
with larger unit (single or three phase) and sized based on running a load starting analysis using calculation 
software. 

 
 
Closing 
 
It is with pleasure that this report is submitted for your use and consideration. We look forward to working with 
Sebago Technics, Grant hays Architects, and the Town of Raymond in the design development for this exciting 
project. 
 
 
 
     



Page 76 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Discussion of Choice of Fiber Network Vendor��Xcn y���¤��̄"�-�8̄CN̄VWY-Z[�\]�̄̂ _̀ȳa"�-�8N���¤�bdY\�Y[¤]�Ze]NdYfghXn yiYeNj-k\Yb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mȳaiYeNj-k\Yb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mg�̄y-Y[oNY[�e\b-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mya-Y[oNY[�e\b-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mg�̄yZe-e��N��]�pb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mȳaZe-e��N��]�pb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mg�y�m¤ooY-]qbf�¤\eN--NdYfȳa�m¤ooY-]qbf�¤\eN--NdYfg�̄y]e-epN-�lb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mya]e-epN-�lb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mgrsn ype�¤\btYY]j-eldY\�k[Z¤\mNdYfȳape�¤\btYY]j-eldY\�k[Z¤\mNdYfg�̄y�keN[YYpb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mya�keN[YYpb-�lfY\]f�¤\eNY-mguvwxn z{|z}|~z~�̄z}�z}̄Ŵ����xswn̂ k\¤d¤��[̄�¤je-̄�Yt\̄Yō��lfY\]����̄����������̄̄��̄������̄�����̄�����̄�� �������̄�̄¡�¢�̄���¡����̄���������̄�̄����̄�££�¥����̄� ̄�����̄ ��̄�̄����¥�¦�£̄§���̄������̈��̄©������ª̄�̄¡�¢�̄�����̄��̄���¡��̄�«̄��¥¡̄�� �������̄�«̄¦�««��£�̄���̄��̄�¡�̄�¬����̄�̄¡�¢�̄����¡���̄�����̄��̄�«����¢������̄���̄£�̈�£�̄�̄��«�£�̄� ̄��̄��««���̄�̄¦���¥�£��̄��«¥�««���̄��̄�¡�̄��®��ª̄�̄���̄«¦��̈�̄��¡̄��¢��̄�̄ ��̄���̈«̄��¥̈��̄���̄��̄�����«����̄�«̄��¥¡̄�«̄�̄¥��£�ª�̄«̄��«�̄� ̄���̄̈���̄��̄�������̄��̄��̄��£�̄�«̄��̄���̈��̄��¢�£�¦����̄ ��̄	��«�£������̄	������¥����«̄�̄��̄�£«�̄���«�����̄� ̄©������ª̄�̄£�¢�̄��̄
�̄�����̄�££̄©�ª̄�̄¡�¢�̄«¦���̄�¡�̄£�«�̄��̄����«̄� ̄��̄£� �̄���̈���̄���¡̄ �����£̄«����̄���£�¥�£̄��¢�������«̄��̄�¬¦������̄���������ª̄��̄ �¥�«̄¡�«̄����̄��̄¦������£�̄��̄�����̄�£�¡���¡̄�¡����¡̄��̄£���«�¦�������̄�̄¡���£�̄�££̄��̄«����«̄�¡��̄	��«�£������̄�¦�����«̄��ª̄�̄��̄�̄¡���̄«�¦¦�����̄� ̄§���̄�¬¦��«���̄���̄�̄«�¦¦���̄�¡�¥¡����̄��̄�¡�̄���̄��«���¥�̄��̄�££��̄ ��̄���������ª̄�¡��̄«���̄�̄��̄���̄«�¦¦���̄�¡�̄�££�¥����̄��̄���̄¦���¥�£��̄¦��¢�������¡���̄��̄©��̄ ��̄�¬�¥�£�̄�¡�̄«��¢�¥�«̄��̄���̄«��̈���̄���̄ �££̄���̄ ���̄¢����̄� ̄�££̄� ̄�¡�«�̄��«¦��«�«̄��̄�����̄��̄�¥¡��¢��¡�̄��«�̄��«�£�̄ ��̄�¡�̄����̄��̄�¡�̄£���«�̄¦��¥�ª̄��̄�«̄��̄��£�� ̄�¡��̄�¡�̄����̄��££̄§��̄�¡��̄�¡�̄��«�̄¦��¡̄ ������̄�«̄���̄���¡������̄�����ª̄��̄�����«�����̄�¡��̄���̄�¦��̄��̄�����̄�¡���̄��̄����¡̄�«�̄��̄¥��¦���̄¡�«̄��¢�����̄�¡�̄�� ��������¡��̄�¡�̄����̄¡�«̄��¥��¢��̄��̄¥�«���̄���̄��̄¥��¦���̄���£�̄��̄��££���̄��̄¦�� ���̄�¡�«̄���̈̄��̄�̄«����§¥���£�̄����¥��¦��¥�ª̄���̄�«̄�¡��̄�̄�����«����̄�¡�̄¥�«�«̄��̄����̄��̄�����̄���� ���!̄#���̄$�%̄���̄&%�'�#�̄��̄())*+,,.+̄/��#�̄0%��1�̄!�/2��̄$����/�34̄562�#�&��̄7�293̄(::*+,)*4̄;��#�%�2�#�<=&��#�3̄(*.+>>>4̄?60��#̄@�$��Ā��/�%̄;B��2���23̄(DE)+**)4̄;��#�%�2�#�<=&��#�3̄(:+D)>F̄�̄¡�¢�̄��¢�����̄�¡�̄§���̄��G��������«̄���̄���£�̄��̄��££���̄��̄¦��¢���̄�¡�̄����̄��̄���̈̄§���«̄��̄���̄��¢��«�̄�����«��̄�¡�̄����̄�H¥�̄���̄�¡�̄§��̄«�����̄��̄�̄¥�«�̄� ̄IJ�KKKK̄��̄������̄�¢��̄I�KKKKK̄̄£�««̄�¡��̄�¡��̄�̄�����«����������̄�����L«̄¦��¥�̄��̄��̄MIOO�J
�Pª̄����£��£�̄�̄��̄¥������̄��̄¥��£�̄¦��¢���̄���̄��¡��̄��G�����̄����«̄£�«���̄���¢�̄��̄�����¥��̄¦��¥�̄¡���¢��̄��̄�����̄��̄��̄«�̄��̄���£�̄����̄����̄�����£̄��̄�£�¥�����¥̄«¦�¥�§¥����«̄���̄�¡�̄«¦�¥�§¥£�¥����«̄� ̄�¡�̄�����ª̄�¡����¡̄�¡�«̄���̈̄	��«�£������̄���£�̄�£«�̄�����̄§���̄��̄�¡�̄¦����«�̄���������̄��̄�££̄��«������£���̄��«���««̄£�¥����«̄�£���̄�¡�̄§���̄�����ª̄	��«�£������̄���£�̄�£«�̄£��̈ �̄�̄�¬¦���̄��̄�¡�̄�����̄����ª̄	��«�£������¥������£�̄¡�«̄�̄¥�����£̄�H¥�̄��̄©������̄���̄���£�̄���̄��G����̄«¦�¥�̄��̄�¡�̄§��̄«�����ª�̄�̄�������̄��̄«����§¥���̄¥�«�̄«�¢���«̄�¡�̄���«��̄�̄��£��¢�̄	��«�£������̄�«̄�̄«�¦�����̄¥¡��¥�̄�«̄��¥��«�̄��̄���̄�Q��̄¡��¡��«¦���«̄M«�������¥�£̄��̄�«̄�¦¦�«��̄��̄��£�̄��P̄��̄�Q��̄£����̄¦��¥�«̄M«��̄¡®¦«�RR���ª§����§���ª¥��R§���S��������̄P��̄¡�¢�̄�̄«����§¥���̄���̈̄ ��¥�̄���¡��̄�¡�̄«����̄M�¢��̄�
K̄��¦£����«P̄���̄��̄���̄��«���T̄��̄���̄�̄��¦̄�K̄§���̄¦��¢����������££�̄���̄��̄¡�¢�̄�¢��̄U�KK̄��£�«̄� ̄§���̄��̄�����̄���̄��̄¥������£�̄�Q��̄§���̄��̄�¢��̄�KKKKK̄��«�����«̄�����«���««̄£�¥����«̄��̄�����̄M̄������̄�����̄¥������£�̄��£�̄«��¢�«̄����̄�«£���Pª̄	��«�£������̄¦��«̄¦��¦����̄��¬�«̄̄ ��̄��«���£����̄��̄©������̄���̄��¦£��«̄��̄£��«�̄J̄��«�����«̄�̄��̄�����̄� ª¯



Page 77www.raymondmaine.org

��v,v7B�LVBak�v�v��B���avk�Bv,�L Lk!v�"v#B�,$�v%L�B7vk�vB&',aVvVBB'vLak�v(,!)�aV�v L*Bv+Baa!v-L  v.�B7Bv�v L/B0v�  �.La$k�B)vk�v1�B77!v'L1*vk�BvVBa�Bv,7B,v.�� Vv2��kv),*BvLkv�,7VB7v"�7v,a�k�B7v'7�/LVB7vk�v1�)BvLa0v37v.�7�B�vL"v4�a�� LV,kBVB&',aVBVv5�B7v�B"�7Bv#B�,$�v%L�B7�vLkv.�� Vv),*BvLkvk��$�v"�7v#B�,$�vk�v1�)'BkB�vk�B7B�!v'�6a$vk�Bv),LakBa,a1Bv�"k�Bvk�.a8�v17L�1, vLa"7,�k7�1k�7Bv,kv7L�*0v�v L/Bv,aVv�7B,k�v�7�,V�,aVv,aVv�aVB7�k,aVv/B7!v.B  vk�Bv1�,  Ba$B�v�"v7�7, v5�B7B&',a�L�a0v��v�v�k,kBv,��/B�v�vkB  v!��v,  vk�L�vLav�7VB7vk�,kv!��v�aVB7�k,aVvk�B7Bv,7Bv, kB7a,�/B�vk�v#B�,$�v%L�B7v.Lk�v��)Bv7B, a�)�B7�v,aVv1�)',7L��a�0v9�L Bv:;43:v'�kv��kv,av(%;�vk�B!v.B7Bv ��*La$v"�7v��)Bk�La$v/B7!vVL<B7Bakvk�,avk�Bvk�.av�"(,!)�aVvL�v ��*La$v"�7va�.0v4�a�� LV,kBVv7B�'�aVBVvk�vk�,kv(%;�v��.B/B7�vv,v)�aL1L', vV,7*v5�B7v7La$v"�7v,v1��' B �1,��a�vL�v)�1�vVL<B7Bakvk�,av,v1�)' BkBv%++;vaBk.�7*v"�7v,  v7B�LVBak�vLavv=vk�.a�0v9Lk�vk�L�v1�,a$B�vk�B7Bv���� Vv�Bv,1�)'B��/Bv'7�1B��vLav�7VB7vk�vBa��7Bvk�Bv�B�kv��Bv�"vk�.av7B���71B�0vvv�v,)v, .,!�v,/,L ,� Bvk�v,a�.B7v,a!v��B���a�v,aVv�v.L  v, ��v�Bv'7B�Bakv�av+�B�V,!v,kvk�Bv)BB�a$0v�v�,/Bv,>,1�BV4�a�� LV,kBV8�vVB�L$avk�vk�BvB&kBakvLkvL�v�B '"� 0v�#v, .,!��vk�,a*�v"�7v!��7v�B 'v,aVv�B7/L1B0v+�,a*��?@A@CvD@EFGHIJKMvNOMPJQMRSvTUOWMSvXMYMZ[\]MRS_̂̀b_cdefghev̂_iij̀dlfgd_̀bvmvnvofpdbvqfrivsetvu_rgcf̀etv��v����	vmbfrf
�efpdb�l_̀b_cdefghe�l_i���n	n�����v_��dlhvmv������n��vlhccvmv�������n�v�f�_̂̀b_cdefghe�l_im���o���v̂���mv



 



Page 79www.raymondmaine.org

Personal Property Revalutaion - KRT



Page 80 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 81www.raymondmaine.org



Page 82 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 83www.raymondmaine.org



Page 84 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 85www.raymondmaine.org



Page 86 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 87www.raymondmaine.org



Page 88 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 89www.raymondmaine.org



Page 90 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 91www.raymondmaine.org



Page 92 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 93www.raymondmaine.org



Page 94 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 95www.raymondmaine.org



Page 96 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 97www.raymondmaine.org



Page 98 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 99www.raymondmaine.org



Page 100 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 101www.raymondmaine.org



Page 102 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 103www.raymondmaine.org



Page 104 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 105www.raymondmaine.org

 
CORPORATE RESOLUTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the below-named individuals be, and are hereby, authorized to 
purchase, sell, assign and endorse for transfer certificates representing stocks, bonds, or 
other securities now registered or hereafter registered in the name of this corporation and 
are further authorized to execute contracts and transactions on behalf of this corporation 
in its capacity as Trustee, Personal Representative, or Financial Power of Attorney: 
 
 

Name Position  
Susan L Look Town Manager 

Charisse Keach Finance Director 

  

 
 
I, ________________________, Town Clerk of Raymond, 
            Melanie Fernald 
 
established under the laws of the State of Maine, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true 
copy of a resolution duly adopted by the Select Board of said corporation at a meeting 
duly held the 7th day of May 2024, at which a quorum was present and voting, and that 
the same has not been repealed or amended, and remains in full force and effect and 
does not conflict with the by-laws of said corporation. 
 
 
 

 
Date: May 7, 2024 
 
 
 

        _____________________________________ 
        BY: Susan L Look, Town Manager 
 
 
 

 
        _____________________________________ 
        BY:  Charisse Keach, Finance Director 
 
 
 
 

(Signature Guarantee)  

Access to Trust Account Approval



Page 106 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

1 
 

Town of Raymond 
June 11, 2024 

SUPPLEMENTAL ANNUAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 
 
TO: Nathan White, a constable of the Town of Raymond, in the County of Cumberland and State 
of Maine.  
 
GREETINGS:  
In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of 
the Town of Raymond, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to assemble in the Jordan-Small 
Middle School Gymnasium of said town on Tuesday, the 11th day of June, A.D. 2024, at seven 
(7:00) o’clock in the forenoon, then and there to act on the article to wit.  
 
 
ARTICLE 36: Referendum Question AH: Shall the Fire Protection Ordinance adopted May 
19, 1995, and amended through June 8, 2021, be further amended to amend Article VIII New 
Building Construction and to add Article XV Appeals as shown in Addendum 10? 
 
(A copy of the full text of the proposed change is available for review and inspection at the 
Town Clerk’s Office, on the Town’s website at www.raymondmaine.org, or at the polling place 
prior to voting.) 
 
Select Board recommends Article 36 
 
Summary of Changes:  
 

Updating the ordinance to more closely align with the State Fire Code for sprinkler system requirements and 
to allow the installation of fire walls to compartmentalize spaces used for load calculations. 
 

 
NOTE:  This article was omitted from the Town meeting warrant already posted due to a storm 
related cancellation of a meeting.  This supplemental warrant adds the article to the agenda for 
the meeting called for June 11, 2024.       
 
 
Given under our hands on the 7th day of May AD 2024. 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Joe Bruno, Chair      Rolf Olsen, Vice Chair 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Teresa Sadak      Samuel Gifford 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Derek Ray 

Supplemental Warrant to Annual Town Meeting Warrant



Page 107www.raymondmaine.org

Fire Protection Ordinance 1 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

FIRE PROTECTION ORDINANCE 
Adopted May 19, 1995 
Amended June 7, 2011 
Amended June 7, 2016 
Amended June 8, 2021 
Amended June 11, 2024 

 

ARTICLE I 

Section 1.  This Ordinance shall be known as the Town of Raymond Fire Protection Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The purpose of the Ordinance is to establish in the manner provided by law, a 
Municipal Fire/Rescue Department according to the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. §3151 and to 
establish an ordinance governing the installation of sprinkler systems in certain buildings in the 
Town of Raymond, Maine. 
 
Section 3.  A Municipal Fire/Rescue Department means an organized Firefighting/Rescue unit 
established pursuant to this Ordinance. 
 
Section 4.  A Municipal Firefighter shall mean an active member, whether full-time, part-time, or 
on call, of a municipal fire department.   
 
Section 5.  A Municipal Rescue Member shall mean an active member whether full-time, part-
time, or on call, of a municipal rescue department, who aids in providing emergency medical and 
rescue assistance and is qualified to render such aid under current Human Services regulations 
governing rescue and ambulance personnel. 
 

ARTICLE II 

Section 1.  There shall be a Municipal Fire/Rescue Department that is established by this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The duties of the Fire/Rescue Department shall be to provide fire protection and 
emergency medical care to the Town of Raymond and elsewhere as provided by mutual aid or 
other contractual agreements approved by the municipal officials. 
 
Section 3.  The head of the Municipal Fire/Rescue Department shall be the Fire Chief, who shall 
be appointed by the Town Manager and confirmed by the Board of Selectmen. 
 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
Section 1.  Members of the Municipal Fire/Rescue Department shall enjoy the privileges and 
immunities as provided them by 30-A, M.R.S.A. §3155, and 14 M.R.S.A. §8101-8118. 

 
 
 

Proposed Redline Changes to Fire Protection Ordinance



Page 108 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Fire Protection Ordinance 2 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

 
ARTICLE IV 

NFPA LIFE SAFETY CODE 101  and NFPA FIRE CODE (NFPA 1) 
 

The Town of Raymond adopts the NFPA Life Safety Code and NFPA fire Code 2018 edition by 
reference as the basis for inspection and plans review for buildings as defined in this ordinance. 
 

 
ARTICLE V 

ALARM SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 1.  A monitored fire alarm system is required in any business, manufacturing facility, 
school, day care, church, and apartment house with more than 3 units, or other public assembly 
occupancy of more than 1,000 square feet.  Spaces of less than 1,000 square feet housed in 
one building or sharing common walls, roofs, or foundations are not exempted.  This requirement 
must be implemented by December 31, 2001. 
 

A. Proof of yearly alarm system testing must be forwarded to:  The Raymond Fire 
Department, Attn: Chief’s Office, 1443 Roosevelt Trail, Raymond, Maine 04071 by 
January 1st of each year. 

 
B. All structures that are required to have an alarm or sprinkler system shall also have a 

secure key box, approved by the Fire Department, containing keys to the entire building, 
contact information and a map of the building. 
 

C. A permit shall be obtained from the Fire Chief, or his or her appointee, before the start of 
construction or alteration of any fire alarm system.  A set of plans showing all devices and 
a one-line diagram of the intended system shall be submitted for review prior to a permit 
being issued. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

 
Section 1.  All trash and construction dumpsters shall be placed no closer than 10 feet from a 
structure, overhang, overhead wires, or be protected by an automatic suppression system if 
placed closer than 10 feet. 
 
The storage of any flammable items, other than items accepted by local Fire Department, Code 
Enforcement, in compliance with NFPA Life Safety Code, or BOCA Maine Uniform Building 
Code, within 10 feet of any business, manufacturing facility, apartment house, school, day care, 
or public assembly occupancy is prohibited.  
 
Section 2: Solid Fuel Burning Stove Permit (Adopted June 7, 2011) 
 
A permit is required for the installation or alteration of any solid fuel burning device in the Town 
of Raymond. As used in this section, the term “solid fuel burning device” includes any wood or 
pellet stove or any other stove which burns a solid fuel as described in the National Fire 
Protection Association’s Standard No. 211, Standards for Chimney's, Fireplaces, Vents and 
Solid Fuel-Burning Appliances, and the term “alteration” means any change to the device other 
than routine, periodic maintenance or repair or replacement of damaged or worn components 



Page 109www.raymondmaine.org

Fire Protection Ordinance 3 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

with equivalent components. Before a solid fuel burning device is utilized, the owner of the 
property on which it is located must contact the Raymond Fire/Rescue Department and arrange 
to have the device inspected. The fee for such inspection shall be $25.00. If the Fire/rescue 
Department finds that the device and its installation comply with all applicable codes and 
regulations, the fire/Rescue Department shall issue a permit. Permits may be obtained at either 
the Fire/Rescue Department or Code Enforcement Office and copies of the permits will be kept 
by both departments. 
 

A. A Solid Fuel Burning Device Permit shall be issued only when the occupancy where the 
device is installed complies with the following requirements: 
 
1. Smoke Detectors shall be installed, in accordance with the manufacturer’s 

requirements at the time of the installation, within any bedroom or within 21 feet of the 
access door to any bedroom and one detector per 500 square feet of floor area of 
other living areas on each floor of the occupancy. 
 

2. Carbon Monoxide Detector(s) shall be installed, in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
requirements at the time of installation, in the room where the solid fuel burning device 
is installed and in each area within, or giving access to, bedrooms. 

 
Section 3: Chimney Ordinance (Adopted 2008 and incorporated June 7, 2011) 
 

A. It is required that chimneys for solid fuel burning appliances be of a fire-resistant masonry 
material, except as provided in paragraph 2 below. 

 
B. Installation of a prefabricated metal chimney is allowed if the chimney is listed as 

approved by Underwriters Laboratories or a similar nationally accredited testing 
laboratory and such listing is in effect at the time of installation. In addition, the use of the 
prefabricated metal chimney must be acceptable under any homeowner’s insurance 
policy or other property and casualty insurance policy covering the building on which the 
chimney is installed. 

 
C. In the event of a chimney fire in any kind of chimney, before the chimney is used again 

the property owner must have the chimney inspected by a chimney  sweep certified by 
the Chimney Safety Institute of America and provide proof of such inspection to the Town 
of Raymond Fire/Rescue Department. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII 
DEFINITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS 

 
Section 1.  An approved automatic sprinkler system shall mean a system installed in accordance 
with the National Fire Protection Association Standard 13 or 13D. 
 
Section 2.  Any building requiring the installation of a Standard 13 System shall have a fire 
department connection.  The location of the connection shall be approved by the Fire Chief and 
properly signed Fire Department Connection. 
 
Section 3.  All sprinkler systems installed under this Ordinance shall have the following: 



Page 110 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Fire Protection Ordinance 4 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

 
A. A tamper switch alarm at the system shut-off; 

 
B. An evacuation alarm for the building that will sound when the sprinkler system is activated.  

The evacuation alarm shall be audible throughout the entire building; 
 

C. An outside water flow alarm; 
 

D. Butterfly valves will not be allowed on any N.F.P.A. Standard 13 System; 
 

E. An automatic alarm to dispatch when the system is activated. 
 
Section 4.  Occupied or unoccupied buildings or portions thereof of any construction having a 
sprinkler system in place, shall maintain all sprinkler and standpipe systems and all component 
parts in a workable condition at all times, and it shall be unlawful for any owner or occupant to 
reduce the effectiveness of the protection these systems provide, except that this shall not 
prohibit the owner or occupant from temporally reducing or discontinuing the protection where 
necessary for the purpose of conducting tests, repairs, alterations, or additions.  The tests, 
repairs, alterations, or additions are to be done in such a way as to avoid the creation of a safety 
hazard. 
 
The Fire Chief shall be notified before any such tests; repairs, alterations or additions are started. 
 
Section 5.  For the purpose of this Ordinance, the term building shall mean any structure except: 
 

A. Single-family dwelling, unless specifically included by local ordinance or state law. 
 
B. Two-family dwelling of two stories or less in height. 
 
C. Barn or stable used exclusively for agricultural purposes. 
 
D. Shelters having roofs supported by columns or walls and intended for storage, housing 

use or enclosure of persons, animals, or chattels, but not excepting any garage, out 
building, or any accessory buildings used for any commercial or industrial purpose. 

 
Section 6.  Any building having more than one sprinkler riser shall have the risers separately 
zoned and wired to a local alarm energy panel to provide zone identification upon activation.  
The energy panel shall be located at the energy alarm panel showing each zone of the building. 
 
Section 7.  A lock box shall be provided outside the building’s main entrance to any building 
regulated hereunder, containing a key or keys to allow access to all fire department areas. 
 
Section 8.  A permit shall be obtained from the Fire Chief before the start of construction of the 
sprinkler system.  A set of blueprints showing the entire sprinkler system and rate of flow shall 
be provided when the permit is obtained.   
 
A copy of the permit shall be forwarded to the Code Enforcement Office.  No Certificate of 
Occupancy shall be issued until the system has been properly installed, tested and approved by 
the Fire Chief or his designee. 



Page 111www.raymondmaine.org

Fire Protection Ordinance 5 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

 
Section 9.  Any building containing a sprinkler system shall have a yearly test completed on the 
system by a qualified sprinkler technician.  A written copy of the yearly test results shall be 
forwarded to the Fire Chief’s office. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
NEW BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 

 
Section 1.  An approved automatic sprinkler system shall be installed in all areas of new buildings 
meeting any or all of the following criteria: 
 

A. Three (3) or more stories in height; 
 

B. Thirty-five (35) or more feet in height, one hundred thousand (100,000) cubic feet in 
volume or forty-eight hundred (4,800) five thousand (5,000) square feet in gross floor 
area, structures sharing a common foundation, roof, or walls totaling 4,800 square feet 
with alternatives or modifications permitted as noted in Section 2 below; 

 
C. Multiple family or multiple occupant dwelling and/or all lodging units of two (2) stories in 

height. 
 

D. Any single-family dwelling attached units – such as town houses, garden apartments, with 
three (3) or more units attached together and/or any grouping of 3 unit style buildings. 

 
E. Any building required to have sprinklers, larger than one dwelling unit, shall have sprinkler 

coverage in the truss loft. 
 

F. Any new or renovated Residential building consisting of One-and Two-Family buildings 
or structures of 4,800 five thousand (5,000) square feet or more in total/gross floor area 
shall install an approved automatic fire sprinkler system throughout. The total/gross 
square foot area calculation for One- and Two-Family dwelling sprinkler installations, shall 
exclude uncovered attached decks, and exclude attached garages, provided that the 
dwelling(s) and attached garage(s) are separated by a UL Listed, 2-hour fire-rated, 
separation wall(s) and components with UL Listed joints, openings or penetration 
protection. 

 
Any living areas included within the garage shall be included in the total/gross square foot 
area calculations. 

 
Exceptions for One-and Two-Family buildings or structures: 
 
Section 2.  Alternatives for installation of fire sprinklers in buildings and structures: 
 

1. A.  An engineered on-site fire protection water supply is provided that meets or 
exceeds the requirements of NFPA 1; Chapter 18, and/or NFPA 1142, for non-
hydrant areas, for fire flow and total water supply. These systems shall be designed 
and stamped by a State of Maine registered engineer, with plans and construction 
approved by the Fire Chief or his/her designee. 

 



Page 112 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Fire Protection Ordinance 6 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

2. B.  An engineered compartmentalization of One-and Two-Family residential buildings 
or structures with a minimum of UL Listed, 2-hour fire-rated separation wall(s) and 
components, with no openings or penetrations; and provides an engineered on-site 
fire protection water supply that meets or exceeds the requirements of NFPA 1; 
Chapter 18, and/or NFPA 1142, for non-hydrant areas, for fire flows and total water 
supply required to protect the largest 2-hour rated compartment in the 
building/structure. These systems shall be designed and stamped by a State of 
Maine registered engineer, with plans and construction approved by the Fire Chief or 
his/her designee. 

 
3. C.  The Raymond Fire Rescue Department may approve alternative methods and 

means of fire suppression when requested by a property owner, provided that the 
Raymond Fire Rescue Department finds that the requested alternative method and 
means meets the intent of this section, and serves to preserve and promote life, 
health, and safety. 

 
D.  For Commercial buildings proposed in the Rural Residential Zones, such as minor 
repair facilities and low hazard storage structures, of Type I / Type II construction, 
with engineered compartmentalized fire areas equal to or less than five thousand 
(5,000) square feet.  The compartmentalized fire are walls shall be minimum of 2-
hour, UL Listed, fire-rated separation wall(s) and components, with no openings or 
penetrations; and shall provide an engineered/certified fire protection water supply 
with a capacity that meets or exceeds the requirements of NFPA 1142, for fire flows 
and total water supply to protect the largest 2-hour rated compartment in the 
building/structure.  The fire protection water supply shall be certified for a usable 
water capacity based upon a 100-year drought, is located within ¾-mile of the 
proposed facility and shall be accessible year-round. 

 
Section 2. 3. For purposes of this Article, the gross square footage of a building or structure shall 
include the sum total of the combined floor areas for all floor levels, basements, sub-basements, 
and additions, in the aggregate, measured from the outside walls, irrespective of the existence 
of interior fire-resistive walls, floors, and ceilings .  For the gross square footage calculations for 
One- and Two-Family Dwellings, refer to Section 1.F. 
 
Section 4.  For the purposes of this Article, NFPA 1142:  Standard on Water Supplies for 
Suburban and Rural Firefighting is used. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
BUILDING ADDITIONS 

 
Section 1.  An approved automatic sprinkler system shall be installed in addition to existing 
buildings when the cumulative area or volume of the total buildings, including the addition, equals 
or exceeds one hundred thousand (100,000) cubic feet in volume or forty-eight (4,800) square 
feet in gross area. 
 
Section 2.  In those instances where a proposed addition or additions will exceed twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the area and/or volume of the existing building and/or when the cost of the 
renovations of the existing building meeting the criteria in Article VIII New Building Construction 



Page 113www.raymondmaine.org

Fire Protection Ordinance 7 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

Section 1A, B, C, D, or F is equal to or greater than fifty percent (50%) of the then current building 
value as shown on the assessment records of the Tax Collector of the Town of Raymond, Maine, 
and when the resulting buildings including the addition or additions meets the criteria listed 
above, the existing building and addition or additions shall have an approved automatic sprinkler 
system. 
 
Section 3. Any building or structure of 4,800 square feet or more in total/gross floor area; any 
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, alteration, or other improvement of a building or structure 
which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the existing building, shall require the entire building to 
be installed with an automatic fire sprinkler system. 
 
Section 4. A fire sprinkler system is required throughout in any existing residential One- and 
Two-Family building of 4,800 square feet or more in total/gross floor area; when any repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, alteration, or other improvement of the building or structure which 
equals or exceeds 50 percent of the existing gross square footage of the building or structure. 
Where renovations occur that would require a building permit, and the total area of the ceiling 
and/or wall covering removed or exposed exceeds 50% or greater of the total gross floor area 
of the building/structure, an approved fire sprinkler system is required to be installed throughout. 
 
Section 5. For the purposes of Section 3 and 4 of this Article, the Raymond Fire Rescue 
Department may consider the installation of a partial fire sprinkler system with the following 
conditions; 
 

1. When a building is partially retrofitted with an approved automatic fire sprinkler 
extinguishing system pursuant to this section, the fire sprinkler extinguishing system 
retrofit shall be completed throughout the unprotected building interior areas within two 
(2) years from completion of the initial partial retrofit. 

 
2. When a property owner or responsible party of a residential building chooses to partially 

retrofit a building as noted in the section above, the property owner shall file a deed 
restriction with Cumberland County Register of Deeds and obtain a performance bond 
with the Town of Raymond, Maine to ensure compliance with this ordinance. 

 
Section 6. For purposes of this Article, the gross square footage of a building or structure shall 
include the sum total of the combined floor areas for all floor levels, basements, sub-
basements, and additions, in the aggregate, measured from the outside walls, irrespective of 
the existence of interior fire-resistive walls, floors, and ceilings. 
 
 

ARTICLE X 
EXISTING COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL BUILDINGS 

 
Section 1.  A change of use or occupancy, which increases the hazard classification, shall 
require the installation of a sprinkler system utilizing the NFPA Life Safety Code 101 hazard 
schedules. 
 

 
 
 



Page 114 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

Fire Protection Ordinance 8 Amended June 8, 2021 June 11, 2024 

ARTICLE XI 
AUTHORITY 

 
Section 1.  The Fire Department shall have the authority to inspect any building greater than a 
2-family residence, public assembly occupancy, 3 family or greater, business, or manufacturing 
facility on a yearly basis. 
 
Section 2.  Liquor licenses will not be granted without full compliance with Fire Code. 
 
 

ARTICLE XII 
VIOLATIONS AND LEGAL ACTION 

 
Section 1.  When any violation of any provision of the ordinance shall be found to exist the Town 
Attorney, as designated by the Municipal Officers and upon notice from the Fire Chief or his 
designee, is hereby authorized and directed to institute any and all actions and proceedings 
either legal or equitable, that may be appropriate or necessary to enforce the provisions of this 
Ordinance in the name of the Town. 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
FINES 

 
Section I.  Any person, firm, or corporation being the owner or having control or use of any 
building or premises who violates any of the provisions of this Ordinance, shall be guilty of a civil 
offense and shall be fined not less than Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than One 
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for each offense.  Each day such violation is permitted to exist after 
notification shall constitute a separate offense. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIV 
 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption at the Town Meeting at which it is voted on. 
 
[The ordinances entitled Town of Raymond Municipal Fire/Rescue Ordinance and Sprinkler 
System Ordinance were combined and renamed Town of Raymond Fire Protection Ordinance 
by Town Meeting vote on March 17, 2001.] 
 
 

ARTICLE XV 
APPEALS 

 
Any decision made by the Fire Department in the administration of this Ordinance may be 
appealed to the Board of Appeals for a de novo review. 
 



Page 115www.raymondmaine.org

Town Manager Sue Look, 

As suggested this week when we spoke, this is a list of our unexpected expenses with an 
explanation for each. 

During this time of year, we are usually only spending budget monies on items needed as we wait to 
assure that payroll and apparatus needs will be met for the remainder of the fiscal year. This year 
we have experienced so many unpredictable expenses that this is not possible, and we will likely be 
over budget on our expenses.  

We have experienced many recent breakdowns, gear impacts and costs affiliated with those 
repairs. Three times this year fire apparatus required a wrecker for breakdowns and once from a 
storm slide off. 

$10,500 for Engine 31, 2002 which has had electrical and fuel system issues that took it out of 
service for over 5 weeks and had affiliated costs early in the year. Then recently its fan blade 
detonated flying parts took out the radiator and the air flow shroud, along with the blade. The costs 
of which required a tow for $500 and $10,000 dollars in parts according to Nathan. It has been out 
of service for over 8 weeks since this incident, we are still waiting for those parts. 

$3,100 for Engine 32, 2015 which slid off the road in the recent big storm, the wrecker cost was 
$2,500 and damage to the truck is estimated at $600. Insurance claim was filed. 

$3,000 for Tank 37, 2018 which just had a mechanical pump seal failure and requires the pump gear 
box to be removed to repair it. It is estimated that $3,000 will cover the cost of repair plus 
recertification testing.  

$2.000 for the in-house radio amplifier which is failing and needs to be replaced, a new one  was 
ordered last week at a cost of an estimated $2,000 for parts and labor. 

$6,738 for 2 sets of turnout gear which were damaged in a recent fire and need replacement.  

$25,338 is the total estimated expense.  There will be a $1,000 deductible on the Engine 32 claim 
which is already covered and some of these costs are estimates, so the amount needed may be 
slightly less.   

Thank you for your consideration. 

Bruce D Tupper 

Fire Chief Memo



Page 116 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting

PROCLAMATION 
 

Commemorating and recognizing the loss in the line of duty of 2 British 
pilots on a training mission over Sebago Lake in 1944. 

 
WHEREAS, on May 17, 2024, the Town of Raymond, Maine, honors two 
World War II British pilots, Sub-Lieutenant Vaughn Reginald Gill and Sub-
Lieutenant Raymond Laurence Knott; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Sub-Lt Gill and Sub-Lt Knott were both from Lee-on-Solent in 
Hampshire, England, and were both 19 years old; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Sub-Lt Gill and Sub-Lt Knott were assigned to the 732nd Squadron 
based at nearby Brunswick Naval Air Station; and, 
 
WHEREAS, On May 16, 1944, just before noon, their squadron took off from 
Brunswick on a training flight to gain experience flying at low altitude over a 
body of water; and, 
 
WHEREAS, as the formation passed over Sebago Lake near Raymond, Sub-Lt 
Gill’s plane suddenly banked sharply and struck the lake and Sub-Lt Knott’s 
plane was hit by the resulting plume of water and both planes were lost in 
the lake; and, 
 
NOW, therefore, I as Chair of the Select Board for the Town of Raymond, and 
on behalf of our Select Board, do hereby Proclaim that the Town of Raymond 
does officially recognize the outstanding efforts of Sub-Lieutenant Vaughn 
Reginald Gill and Sub-Lieutenant Raymond Laurence Knott during World War 
II. 
 

          _______________________________________ 
      Joseph Bruno 
      Chair of the Town of Raymond's 
      Select Board 

Proclamation for Veteran’s Ceremony



Page 117www.raymondmaine.org

RSU #14 Budget Warrant



Page 118 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 119www.raymondmaine.org



Page 120 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting



Page 121www.raymondmaine.org



Page 122 May 7, 2024                       Select Board Meeting


	Agenda
	Special Town Meeting Warrant
	Previous Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2024
	Previous Meeting Minutes - April 26, 2024
	Annual Town Meeting Warrant Articles for Public Hearing
	Article 26 - Proposed Public Works Garage
	Discussion of Choice of Fiber Network Vendor
	Personal Property Revalutaion - KRT
	Access to Trust Account Approval
	Supplemental Warrant to Annual Town Meeting Warrant
	Proposed Redline Changes to Fire Protection Ordinance
	Fire Chief Memo
	Proclamation for Veteran’s Ceremony
	RSU #14 Budget Warrant

